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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

\

INTERIM COMMISSIONER

JaredChicoine 1-800-735-2964

Tel. (603) 271-3670

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER 271-1526
Christopher J. Ellms. Jr. ^ .

^4syi!^ Website:

www.energy.nh.gov
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 8. Fruit St.. Suite 10
Concord. N.H. 03301-2429

September 29, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (Energy) to enter into a Retroactive amendment to an existing
Contract Agreement (Contract #1076438) with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
(VC#177203), Concord, NH, by extending the completion date from September 30, 2021 to September 30, 2022
with no change in the price limitation of $5,149,520.00 for the Fuel Assistance Program (PAP), effective
retroactively to October 1, 2021 upon approval of Governor and Executive Council. This contract was originally
approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 23, 2020 (Item #45) and amended on March 24,
2021 (Item #43). 100% Federal Funds.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to allow the vendor additional time to expend the contract funds. US DHHS made
CARES Act funds available in FY21 which resulted in an increase in remaining funds for the annual fuel
assistance block grant funding. US DHHS allows the state and our subgrantees two years to expend the funds. By
extending this contract, the Community Action Agency is able to continue their efforts to add more low-income
families to the approved clientele listing for assistance for the new heating season.

This Energy contract provides the Community Action Agency with program funds to support eligible New
Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled citizens who are in need of assistance to
help pay for heating costs this winter season.

The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more
affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. Federal law establishes maximum income
guidelines. Energy subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP services at the local
level.

In the event Federal Funds are not available. General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Lespectfully^bmitted,

Jared Chicoine

Director

JC/jel



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

AMENDMENT # 2

This Amendment dated September 24, 2021 is between the State of New Hampshire Department
of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
"State") and Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., P.O. Box 1016, 2
Industrial Park Drive, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03302 (hereinafter the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), Contract Number
1076438, as approved by Govemor and Council on September 23, 2020 (Item #45), as amended on
March 24,2021 (#43), the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and
conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as
specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval
of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking the
current completion date of September 30, 2021 and inserting in place thereof the
date of September 30, 2022.

B) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the
current contract dates of "October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021" and
inserting in place thereof "October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2022"

C) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification" to "October 1, 2020 to
September 30, 2022"

D) Exhibit E: Ameiid contract period dates to "October 1, 2020 to September 30,
2022"

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms and
Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full force
and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it existed
immediately prior to this Amendment.

CAPBM Amendment Controciirocior Initials: ^ fi
Grant; G-2I01NHUEA Date:.
CFDA: 93.568 Page I of2



CONTRACT AMENDMENT NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ,

NH Dep^^rtment 9^^e^

red Chicoine,^itenm Cbliunifisioner

Community Action ProgranvBelknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

nnc Agri, Chief Executivemfficer

New HampshireState of _
County of Mcrrimack

On this 27^ day of September. 2021. before me, tCalhv L. Howard . the undersigned officer,
personally appeared Jeanne Agri . who acknowledged himself/herself to be the Chief Executive
Officer of Community Action Prota-am Delknap-Mcrrimack Counties. Inc.. a corporation, and that
he/she being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein "

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Publicv&e of the
My Commission expires: My CwnniiUmi EiyirwOctoboc tr. 2023

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ̂ ^ORNEY GENERAL

Date:

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on ,2021.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

CAPBM Amendment

Grant: G-2101NHLIEA

CFDA: 93.568

Contra

Date

tractor Initials: CVlrx
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Phone (603) 225-3295
(800) 856-5525
Fax (603) 228-1898
Web www.bm-cap.org

O
o
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BELKNAP-MER.RIMACK COUNTIES. INC.
EuaowERiN^ COMMUNiriEi SINCE I96S

■  2 Industrial Park Drive

P.O. Box 1016

Concord, NH

03302-1016

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Dennis Martino. President. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on January 14, 2021. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michaef Tabory,
Chief Operations Officer/Deputy Director, Rossana Coding, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino. President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter into contracts

or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all docurnents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been artiended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.

Such authority to be in force and effect until September 30. 2022. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 9/27/2021 Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dennis Martino

Title: President, Board of Directors

Rev 11/12/2020
kir>:COA - denni* martino
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28,1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned,

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0005338239

y
tin

"0
6^

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Stale



/KCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATC (MM/DO/YYYY)

10/01/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on.
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement(8).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

.Manchester NH 03101

contact Andrea Nlcklln

K f,,,. (603)669-3218 (603)615-4331
ADDRESS' "wnci^'CehsQcrossagency.com

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICll

INSURER A Selective Insurance Group

INSURED

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER C Federal Ins Co 20281

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 21-22 All lines w/D&O. REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIPKTHAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY TWE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

IMSrt
LTR -TYPE OF INSURANCE

XDDC
|f1?D

5U5R
WVD POUCY NUMBER

WUCVEfi!
(MM/DO/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) UMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

E 1 X] OCCUR

S 2509940 10/01/2021 10/01/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 1.000,000

CLAIMSAMC
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea oecufrencel

, .1,000,000

MED EXP (Any one petson)
, 20,000 -

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY
, 1,000.000

GEI<a AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE
j 3,000,000

POLICY |_^ jIct LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGQ
, 3,000,000

s

A

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

S 2509940 ' 10/01/2021 10/01/2022

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEe eccMnntt

$ 1,000.000

X ANY AUTO

HEDULEO
nos
>N-OWNED
nos ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

OWNED
ALfTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

sc
Al

BODILY INJURY (Per ecddeni)

NC
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE '
rPBf acdflnnO

s

$

A

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS^DE
S 2509940 10/01/2021 10/01/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
J 5,000,000

AGGREGATE
, 5.000,000

OED X RETENTION S ® s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION' .

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIve rTTl
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? hi
(Mtndatory In NH) ' '
1'yes. (tesolbe ur>d«r
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belGiw

NfA HCHS20210000395 (3a.) NH 02/01/2021 02/01/2022

w PER . OTH-
^ STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
, 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
J 1,000,000

E,L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
J 1,000,000

C
Directors & Officers Liability

82471794 04/01/2021 04/01/2022

Limit

Deductible

$1,000,000

ss.ooo

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarlts Schadula, may ba attMltad If mora apaco la raqulrad)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire; Dept of Energy

21 South Fruit Street

Suite 10

Concord NH 03301

1  •

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

O1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



STATE OF NEW RCUD J
Office of Strategic Initiatives "

107 Pleasant Sireel. Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301-3834 Division op Planning
Telephone: (603) 271-2155 mviQinN af FNirprv

Fax:(603) 271-2615 www.nh.gov/osi

APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
& COUNCIL ON: 3/24/2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T.Sununu, AGENDA ITEM: #43
and the Honorable Council P0#1076438

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OS!) to amend the SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement
(Contract #1076438) with Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (VC#I77203),
Concord, NH, by increasing the contract amount by $1,410,871.00.00 from $3,738,649.00 to $5,149,520.00 for
the Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), effective upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through
September 30, 2021. This contract was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on September
23, 2020 (Item #45). 100% Federal Funds.

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance
01-02-02-024010-77050000
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $1,410,871.00

EXPLANATION

This contract amendment is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program.

The additional amount requested in this contract amendment represents (the CAAs) share of Federal LIHEAP
funding expected for PY 2021. This OS! contract amendment will provide the Community Action Agency with
program funds to support eligible New Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled
citizens who are in need of assistance to help pay for heating costs this winter season.

The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more
affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. Federal law establishes maximum income
guidelines. OSl subcontracts to the five CAAs who arc responsible for providing FAP services at the local level.

In the event Federal Funds are not available, Genera) Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine

Director

JC/adc

C&C 03/24/2021

TOO Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated Fcbruaiy 12,2021 is between the State of New Hampshire, Office of
Strategie Initiatives, 107 Pleasant Street, Concord, Merriraack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to
as the "State") and Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., P.O. Box 1016,2
Industrial Park Drive, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
"Contractor")-

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), Contract Number
1076438, as approved by Governor and Council on September 23, 2020 (Item #45), the Contractor has
agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in
consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval
of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in

the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows:

" AVPncie.j^i^itatidn: Amend Subnaragraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the
current sum of $3,738,649.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$5,149,520.00.

B1 'E>^ibi't'rC-~".'Ravmenf.Terms:. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the
current sum of $3,738,649.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$5,149,520.00.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of $313,694.00
and inserting $319,250.00 for administrative costs.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of $3,223,487.00
and inserting $4,628,802.00 for program costs.

2. .Gbnti D u a nee of .^Agf ccmcn t. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms and
Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full force
and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it existed
immediately prior to this Amendment.

CAPBM Amendrocni Coniraclor lytiali:'
GrBni:G-2l0lNHUEA Doie:

CrOA: 93.568 ^ 1 of2



CONTRACT amendment CFHCE OF STRATEGIC XNTriATIVES

FN WITNESS WHEREOF, ihc parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF NEW

Office of Strategic I^ative'i
J  ̂

\  ■

J^d Chicoine, Director

Action Pro grain/6eij^aprMerrirnack Counties, Inc;;

By:.i
MichaelTabory,;@3 ratog"; Officer

State of New Hampshire
County of JMemma^"

On this 16^ day of February. 2021 . before me....^athvE^ffi.ward^. the undersigned officer,
pcrsonaJly appeared Michael Taborv . who acknowledged hi^lf^ers^^^^ to be the. IChiefQperafi'ri^^^^
Officer of 'Gommunjtv Actibh iPi^ginmlBeliahpTM'dn^ a corporation, and that
he/she being authorized so to do, executed the foregding instrument for the purpo^'cohtaindd.herein

'*• •>O'

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official ;

Notary-J^ljfi&Msfi&;of the Peace

' ir

My Commission expires

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THEATTORNEY GENERAL

By

Date:?

Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract wm agproved by the Governor and Council of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on MAR 2 7 Z021 , 2021.

OFFICE r5F

By: _

Y OF STATE

CAPBM Amendment
Grant: G.2101NHL1EA

CFDA: 93.368

aEFUTYSECRETftRVOFSri

Conlrtclor Ipitiola _
Dili: W

Page 2 of2



State of New .Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, WillUm M. Gtrdncr. Sceretafy ofSute of the Sutc of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thai COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRJMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28,196S. I hirther certify that all fees and documents required by the Seaetary of

Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as fir as this office is concemed..

Business 10: d3021

Certificate Number 0004923691

ft

Urn

o

%

fN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of June A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Phone (603) 225-3295
(800) 856-5525
Fax (603) 228-1898
Websvww.bm-cap.org
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BELKNAP-MEUIIMACIC COUNTIES, INC.
CM»OWE0'K6 COUMUNlTlit SINCe lt«»

2 Industrial Park Drive !

P.O. Box 1016 ;
Concord, NH '

03302-1016

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

l  .bennis;MartinDLPresi8ent ;Bbard^^^ hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of GommuriitV "Actidh Rroaram .Belkh'ai^Merhma'ck' Cburitii^rlhe;

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on January 14. 2021. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agii, CMef Executive Offircer/ExecuftVe Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating OfRcer/Deputy Director, Rossana Goding, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, fh-esident. Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of'dommuniW-Adibn?Pixx3ram MknaD^errimack€^ to enter into contracts
or agreements"with the State of New Hampshire and'any of its i^encies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.
Such authority to be in force and effect until jSeptemberv^tfi.gOiii. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the posltion(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any.
listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein,

Dated: , 2/16/2021
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dennis Martino

Title: President, Board of Directors

Rev. t/t4/202t
UfKCOA - OMVib mtnino
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

The Board of Directors of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. authorizes the Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Chief Operating Officer/Deputy
Director, Chief Fiscal Officer, Budget Analyst, President, Vice-President(s) or Treasurer of the
Agency to sign contracts and reports with the State of New Hampshire, Departments of the
Federal. Government, which include all federal #209 and #272 Fonns, and public or private
nonprofit agencies including, bui noi liniiied to, the following:

• Department of Adminisuaiive Services for food distribution programs
•  Depailmcni of Education for-Nutrition programs
• Department of Health and Human Services

- Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for elderly programs
- Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services for homeless/bousing programs
- Division of Children, Youth, and Families for child core programs
- Division.orFamily Assistance for Community Services Block Gram
- Division of Public Health Services for public health programs

• Department of Justice for child advocacy/therapy programs
•  Department ofTransportailon-Public Transpcnaiicn Bureau for transportation programs
•  Public Utilities Commission for utility assistance programs

Workforce Opportunity Council for employment and job training programs
•. Dcportmcni of Natural and Cultural Resources
• New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) for Eow Income Energy Assistance,

Weaiherization, SEAS and Block Grant progiaras

'• New Hampshire Community Devclopmcnl Finance Authority
• New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority'

•  • New Hampshire Secretary of State

•  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
•  U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developmenl
•  U.S. Department of the Treasury - Intemal Revenue Seivice
•• and other departments and divisions as required

This Resolution authorizes the signing of all supplementary and subsidiary documents
necessary to executing the authorized contracts as well as any modifications or amendments
relative to said contracts or ngreemcnts.

This Resolution was approved by the Board of Directors of Community Action Program
Belknnp-Mcmmack Counties, Inc. on January M, 2021, and has not been amended or revoked
and remains in effect as of the date listed below.

2f£6/202\
■  ' '•j j Qaic Bruce Carri

■ ' " Secretary/Clerk

SEAL



ACaRD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATC (MMAorrrrv)

02/W^l

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE 3"
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED
BELOW THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
pppDPRPMTATlve OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certlfteale holder la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollc
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, eubjecl to Ihe lerma and condlllona of tha po

y(laa) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisiona or oe enooreeo.
Icy, certain policies may requlrt an andoraemant. A statement on
•ndorsement(s).

peooucea
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1100 Elm Straet
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•5^.., anlcklJi©cio*saoency.com .
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Community AcUon Pmgram Bafcn«p44en1mack Counttaa Inc.

P. O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

MSURSR a • Stata Health Care and Human Servlcea Self:
•rsuRERC; FodamilnsCo

20261

•rtURSRO;

WSURER F:

Twi<t TO cgRTffY T><ATT>g POUQES OF IWSURAWC6 LISTED BElOW KAVE BEEN ISSUED TO TKE IMSUR£0 NAWEP ABOVE POR THE POUCY PER^OiSl^TED^i?^t!S^r^~^RE5L«HSST!^RM0«C0N0m0N0f«VVC0«T1«CT0«0THERCX^
CERTIFICAT6 UAY 6£ ISSUED OR MAY PERTAJN. THE INSURANCE Aff OROCO DY THE POLICIES OESCReEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND COHCHT>ONS OF SUCH POttCCS. LtUlTS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN

IWSJTI
TVFCOFKSUAANCS I ir-ll AOLCY wmagA

wuevEFP
tMWDOAYYYl

NV-KVEJiP"
tyM/oonYYV>

UHTTS
.i'i-l

comucmial ocneaal UABUTY

1 CLAIUS44ADe OCCUP
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X LOC

AUTOwowu uAM.rrY

ANY AUTOX
OWNED
MJTOSONLY
WAED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEOUUO
AUTOS
NONCWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2ia7440

PHPK2167429

10/01/2020

10A)1/2020

10A)1/2021

10101/2021

PACH OCCURRENCE
DMUCE lORLFTES
PR6M1SeSl6«aeQi"W0«1

MEO EXP (A«t Bt» pww)

PERSONAL « AOV PUUWY

GENERAL AGCWEQATE

PROOUCTS • 6ompwaoo_

SiNOLE uurr
TEj »«X>0W)

BOOAY •UURY(Pw »•»•«»)

BOoa.Y»iA;RY(Pw

PftOPEKTYOAMAdf
TP» »eddenll

1.000.000

100.000

SOOO

1.000.000

j 3.000.000
, 3000.000

s 1000.000

X UMORELLAUAB

EXCESS LIAS

OED 13 RETEnTXX $
•YORKERS COMPCNSATIOM
AND EMPLOYERr UABILrTY vfH
ANY PROPRJeTORIPARTHtR®«CUTlve
OfACERAIEMBER exCLUOeOT
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10.000
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EACH OCCURRENCE

PHUB740340 10/01/2020 10^1/2021 ACCRECATE
3000.000

^TI5
STATUTE

Tot

HCHS2021000039S (3a.) NH 02/01/2021 02« 1/2022 E.L. EACHACCOEtff 1000.000

EL CTSEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
1.000.000

e.L OlSEASE • POLICY LlwrT
, 1.000.000

$1,000,000

OlfBCtort 8 omcsrs LtobUty 82471794 04/01/2020 04/01/2021

Limit ,

0«ductfl)le $3,000

OESCR^TION Of OPERATTONSI lOCATWKS IVEHJCLE# (ACORO101. AS^IIoaN R»m»*A "My b« "TuetMO H MM" !•
(Je0«: Jet) Typ«. Stnisf^ Initiativas (OSI))
Conflrmatlon of Cowsge.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRIBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE OELIVEREO IN

Offlco Of Strategic Initiatives (OSI)
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

107 Pleasani Straet AUTMORtZED RCPReSCHTATIVe
Johnson HaD. 3rd Floor

Concord
1

NH 03301
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CliUSTOPIiCR T. SUKUNU
Governor

SEP12'20 fl(il0i4T DflS
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Office of Stiutecic initiatives

107 PIcaiani Sircci. Johnson Hal)

Concord, NH 03301-3834

Telephone: (603) 271-2155
Fax: (603)271-2615

Division of Planninc
Division of Enercv

www.nh.gov/osi

Seplen)ber9,2020

His ExceUcncy, Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and ihe Honorable Council

Stale House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
& COUNCIL ON: 9/23/2020
AGENDA ITEM: #45
P0#1076438

REQUESTED ACTION

I) Aulhoriit ilie Office of Slrategic Initiatives (OSI) to cn.ler into a SOLE SOURCE conlraci with Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrin.ack Counties, Inc., {VC #177203), Concord, NH, in the amount of $3 738 6<9 for
the r^uel Assistance Program effective October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021, upon approval of Governor
and Executive Council. l(X)®/o Federal Funds.

Funds lo support this request are anticipated lo be available in the following account in FY 2021 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

Office of Slmlepic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance

01-02-02-024010-77050000
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

/

FV 202I

53,738,649.00

2) Further r^ucsl auihorizotion to advance Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties Inc
5360,311.00 from the above-referenced contraci amounl. ■ *

EXPLANATION

Tlii.s contraci is SQLES.OURCE based on the historical performance of the Comnnmiiy Action Agencies (CAA)
in Ihe New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and clicni service capabilities, the
synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federal
assistance programs, and the infrastrticlure that is already in place to deliver FAR services. OSI proposes to
condniic to subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at ihe local level for
more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the OSI FAP Administrator in the Implementation of the
program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Fedcrnl Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
Block Grant, and works to make home energy more afrordablc for income-qualified New Hampshire families
including those who arc elderly or disabled. Program funds arc targeted to low income households with high '
energy burdens. Tlte current ina.ximiim Income level is 60% of the Slaic Median income (SMI), which is
569,686,00 for a family of four. The overage FAP benefit during the last program year was $890.00.

TOO Access: Kclay NH I-SOO-735-2964
CAC 09/23/2020



^\'tt lZ»ccilency. Governor Chriitophcr T. Sununu
irvd (hcl-lunorablcCouncil

Sei>icRibcr 9, 2020
l>»yc2of2

The LIHEAP program operates on an October 1, 2020 to September 30, 2021 program year, but at this time
Congress has not finalized appropriations for the Federal fiscal year 2021. Therefore, the contract amount for
each of the Community Action Agencies is based upon OSi's best estimate of anticipated federal funding,
including carryover funds from the prior program year. No.funds will be obligated under this contract unless
federal monies are available to be expended. The proposed ad.vancc of funds will enable the CAA to operate the
program between monthly reimbursements from the Slate.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support
this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoinc

Director

JC/EPS

Enclosures

QtiQwnmm-



FORM NUMBER r^37 (versiob^ 12/11/201 ?)

Noitce: Thjs-a^eemeot.and iirofiuanachmMC's Shaii Sccome'.pubiic.upoh submisaidn lo Gdyenior and
^ccuilvc Council.for:8pprbval. Any infofmaDon thai U private, conGdtniiai,or propricLiry muse-
be-claa/ly-idcntUIW w rtc ageniy and ajp^.ed to m wriiihg prior tb.siBning (he contract.

AGREEMENT

the Stale of New Hampshlreand die Contiaaof'herebymutually.agrecM follows:

C^RaL PROVISIONS

IM, Slate AgMcy Name
OrnceorStraiegic'thitiatiyes'

1.2.'State Agcocy.Address
107 Meaiatit S.trMt,;Johpsoo Kail-
Coijcofdj New Hampshire' 0336.1

r.3 Coniractor.Namc

'Communjri' Aaiop;ProBramDelknap-Mcn'imack\Cduftiics,.Ihc.
1.4 ^htra'ctor.Addms'
P:0. Box 1016; Cijncord, Nk0330i:

;  •Cbntrafctor Phone^
• Number

:{6d3)ai-32?5 . .

1.6 Ac'counilNumbcr.-'

6l-^-02-b240ld-77050000- '
074-50058.7. p2E2lA'

1.7 GpmpleUon Date •
Septcniber 30,262 r

r.8 Price.Cimiialibri."
•$3;738;649.00

f ' • * ' •

■ ■|;j9"-Coritiicuhg Officer fpr. Swtc Agency
> 'Qieen S'miglpWsl(i;'Pue{ Aisirianc« Program Admibistrator '

:. l.lO.Statc Agency TelepKbnc'Nujhber
••(M3)-27l-2|55"

• '*1 :'l 1./ 'Coritractij/

^  ilv K • -f. f Diic; 9/9/2020 ;
M .12, 'Name-end Title 6.f Cbhtrtctor-Signalory

.Jeanne -Agri,- Exwuliyc Director

yib • ;SiateA'ge^'Si^iojy 'l;14- Name aridTillcjbf StateAgimc^Sigha'tory ' ^
'  vj a»^.c,c( ClUi..Coi.M.e..

*

'IslWApprbvaj by theN.H.,D€paitmehtqf Administr*Uoh,.OjvisioQ.'6fPcrsonnel,///"cp^/icfli>74/'

By:. 'bir.c«or,0n:

1.16 Approv'al,6yth(:."ABMhcy,General (Fon^Subsiance8ndExccu|jori)/^opp//caWe.^

1.17 -App'royal.by^o^Q^eriid^ and'Exi^tiye Cbuhcil (i/ofiplieable) • —
SEPijJSd

P^C 1. of 4
Coritractor.-Initials

Date,59:^030..



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMEd. The Siate of New
Himpjhire. ecting through ihc agency idcntined in block 1.1
rStatc"), engages coniracior ideniified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, aj>d the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified wd more particularly
described in the anached EXWBiT B jwhich is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services"). ,

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwilhstanding any provision of ihis Agreement Ip the
coftlrary. and subject to the approval !of the Governor and
£.xccutivc Council of the Slau of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder. shall
become effective on the dale the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement u indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is re^iuircd, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Slate Agency as shown.in block 1.13 ("Effective Date ).
3.2 If the Contractor commtnccs the -Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by ijte Contraaor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at; the sole risk of the
Contjacior. and in the event that this Agrccrncni does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to (he Contractor,
including wiihotil limitation, any obligation to pay the
Cortbacior for any costs incuircd or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by .the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

li
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.
Notwithstanding any provision of ihisJ Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of (he State .hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any sutc or federal legisUiive or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or oth^vise modifies the
appropriation Of availability of funding for this Agreement artd
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan In no event shall the Suie be liab|e for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, die
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
icrminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfcrl^funds from any oiher
account or source to (he Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account arc reduced cir.,unavailable.

1 1
5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/'
payment.

3 I Thccontroet price,methodofpaymcn^jandtermsorpaymem
•  are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C

which is incorporated herein by rcfcrencc Jj
5.2 The payment by the State of the conirpci pncc shall bc the
only and the complete reimbursement to. the Cono^ctor for all
expenses of whatever nature incurred byjlhc Contracior m the
performance hereof, and shall be the on^ly and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Slate shall
have DO liability to the Contractor other than (he contract price.
3.3 The Stale reserves the right to offset from any amounts
othenvise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or pcnniiied by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Nocwithsionding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limliatioo set forth in block 1.8.

6 COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
and regulations/ equal employment
OPPOKTUNITV.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon Ihc
Contractor. Including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, Ifthis Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as (he
State or. the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable inlcHeciual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affinnaiive action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to pcmiii the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulatKMis
and orders, and (he covcnanu, terms and conditions of (his
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL

7 I The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. Tlie Confracior warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services, shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agrxemeni. and for a period of six (6) months after the.
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontmctor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it Is engaged in a combined efTort to
perform the Services to hire. any person who is a State employee
or official, who is malcrially involved in the procoremeni,
■dministralion or performance of (Jiis Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified In block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Sute's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the inierpretalion of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4 Coniracior InitialsQl^



B. EVENT OP DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
1.1 Any one or more of the following tcis or omissions of ihc
Contnctor shell constitute in event of defauh hercunder ("Event
ofOeriuli"):
8.1.1 fiilure to perform the Services iitisfsctorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Evcni.of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; end if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
tenninote this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of (enninaiion;
8.2.2 give (he Contractor a written notice specilying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has'curcd the Event of DcfsuU
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations (he State may
owe to (he Contractor any damages the Stale suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specilying the Event of
Delault, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of Its remedies at law'or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Sute to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
OefaTli. No express failure lo'ehfdfcie aoy Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of (he right of the Slate to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on (he pan of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Stale may, at its sole
discretion, terminate (he Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor (hat
the State is exercising its option to terminate (he Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termlriaiion of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, dcliva to the
Contreciing OfTtcer, not later than Hfteen (15) days af^er (he date
of termination, a report ("Tenntnation Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the deic of (erminatlon. The fonn, subject cnaUer,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition; at the State's discretion, (he Contractor
shall, within IS days of notice of early termination,develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all sntdies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings', inalyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
fmlshed or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property whieh has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under (his Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to (he Slate upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or oU^r existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

.  II.CONTRACTOR'SRELATIONTOTHESTATE. Inthe

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an Independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State.' Neither the Contractor nor any of iu
ofTiccrs. employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind Che Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

11. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the Stale at least fifteen (IS) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of (he State. For purposes
of this paragraph,* a Change*of'Control*shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related oansactions in
which a third party, together with iU affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (SOS) or more of (he
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of ell or substantially all
of the assets of the Coniractor.-

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The Stale is entitled to copies of'all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not e
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its
ofTicers and employees,-from and against any and all claims,
liabilities.and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
ihe State, its ofHcers or employees, which arise outofCor vrhich
may be claimed to arise out oO (he acts or omission of (he

of d
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Contractor, or subconiractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incuned by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Nonvithsianding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of die sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph, 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement

14. INSURANCE. .
14.1 The Contractor shall, at tu sole .expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and_, shall require any
mbcontracior or assignee to obtain and,maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and :$2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and i-
14 11 special cause of loss coverage form;COvcnng all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein. in;ahlamount not less than
80% of die whole replacement value of the property,
14.2 The policies described in subparagrvh '^1 herein shall be
on policy forms and cndoncmenis appro.ved for use in the Stale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Departinent of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
idcniined In block 1.9, or his or her successor, a «ftincatc($) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer idcniiried
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of insurance
for all rcnewal($) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to (he expiration dale of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificotc($) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

■IS. WORKERS'COMPENSATION. Ill
15.1 By signing this agrcemeni, the Con^cior agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N,H. RSA chapter 281-A CtVorkers-
Compensation"). ij)
15 2 To the cxicni the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. ConueclJjr shall tnainUin. and
require any subconUector or assignee tojjsccurc and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation^ jjin conneetion with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement • The Contracior shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her succes,^. proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described; in N.H. RSA
281-A and any applicable rcnewBl($) ihwcof, which shall be
atuched and are incorporated herein by [reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payrhcm of any Wooers
Compensation premiums or for any oihw claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or emfiloyce of Contractor,
which mi^l arise under applicable State of New Hampshuc
Workers' Compensation laws in ^ connection wiih the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

Id. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other p^
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stata
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4,herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only afier approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant lo Slate law, rule or policy.

id. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and conjtiued in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any piny.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

79. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a confiict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment (hereof, the terms of the
p.37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

31. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, rnodify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the .provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inlheeventahyoflhcprovisioosofthis
Agreement are held by o court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes (he entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject maner
hereof.

Page 4 of d
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EXHJBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph I. i 6 of ihe General Provisions, shall not apply lo this agreement.

2. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisioos. the Contractor shall
deliver to the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified
independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

3. This audit shall'be conducted in accordance with the audit requirement's of OfTiceof
Management and Budget (0MB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subpan F- Audit Requirements.
The Fuel Assistance Program shall be considered a "major program" for puiposeis of this audit.

4. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

5. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years' questioned costs along with an Agency
response to the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all 0MB tetters
written as a result of audits shall be forwarded lo OSI. The audit shall be forwarded to OSI

within one month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action plan for each
finding or questioned cost.

6. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final
Report described in Exhibit A."

7. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed"in 2'CFR 200 Subpan E - Cost Principles. ' ~

8. Program and financial records pertaining to (his contract shall be retained by the Agency for 3
(three) years from the dale of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 200.333 -
Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

'  i

9. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995", the following
provisions are applicable to (his grant award:

a) Section 507: "Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - It is the sense
of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and products
purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-made."

b) Section 508: " When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in
part with federal money, all stales receiving federal funds, including but not limited to

CAPDMUHEAP2I E*hibiU A, B a C
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state and local govcmnicnls and recipients of federal research grants, shall clearly stale
(I) the pcrcchlage of the toUl costs of the program or project which will.bc financed

with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of federal funds for the project or program, and
(3) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program that will be
financed by non-govemmenul sources."

10 CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and relmburscraenl requests shall be
submitted to the State within thirty (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

II. AliVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance Program
expenditures. Advancis program funds arc to be used only for Fuel Assistance Program vendor
paymcnU. All Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance program payrhcnts. inust
be transferred from Ihc Community Action Agency's general operating account into a specific
Fuel Assistance Program account within 48 hours aflcr being received clcclroQically from the
Slate. CAAs must submit the bank account number of the designated bank account for the
advance fimds to OSI prior to the electronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent
Advance program funds must remain in the FA? dedicated account at all times and cannot be
comingled with any olAcr CAA funds. CAAs ore required to submit a complete elccuomc copy of
the FAP-dcdicatcd baiik account sutement to OSI on a monthly basis.

ExhibiuA.DaC, ...
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EXHIBIT 8

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contraclor agrees to provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low income
individuals, and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program Id
accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel
Assistance Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as determined
•by OSI.

Fuel Assistonce Program (FAP) services Nvill be defined to include the following categories:

1. Outreach, eligibility, determination and certification of FAP applicants.

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b. Lines of credit

c. Budget plan payments

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as undefined
portions of their rent.

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in the Fuel
Assistance Procedures Manual.

5. Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above.

CAPBM UHEAP21 eisKliUu
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EXHIBIT C

payment TERMS

In considcraUon of Ihc satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the Stale
agrees to pay over to the Ojntxactor the sum of S3.738.649.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the
"Grant").

Upon the Slate's receipt of the 2021 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the US
Department of Health and Human Services, the following funds will be authon?^:

S313 694 00 for administrauon costs, of which $37,962.00 will be issued as a cash advance;
S3.223.487.00 for p'rogram costs, of which $322,349.00 will be issued as a cash advance;
$201,468.00 for Assurance 16.

The dates for this contract i ire October 1.2020 through September 30,2021.

Approval to obligate (Exhi )it I) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the Office of
Strategic Initiatives to the Contractor as the Federal fttnds become available. Drawdowns from the
balance of funds wiU be made to the Contractor only after wriften documentation of cash need is
submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with procedures established
by the Slate as'detaiied in the Fuel Assisiihce Prbgram P'rbcedures Manual.

CFDA Tide:

CFOANo:

Award Name:-

Federal Agency;

Low .Income Home Energy Assistance Program

93.5 58

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Health & Human Services
Admbiislraiion for Children and Families
Office of Community Services

CAPOM UKHAPJI
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NEW HAMPSinRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDAKDEXHIBITD

The Conlrtctor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 ofthc Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S-C.
701 et scq.), and further agrees to have the Conlracior's representative, as identified in Sections 1. 11 and 1. 12 of
(he General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN CNDIVIDUAiS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US department OF ENERGY

This certificatioD is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. lOO-690.TitlcV, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.701 etseq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended aod published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 EederaT R^girter f pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by infercf>ce sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 30i7.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each gram during the federal fiscal ycar covercd by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material represeniation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of (he ctrtificaiion shall be grounds for suspcnstoo of payments,
suspension or terminaiion of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to:

Direclor, New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives,
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall, Concord, NH 03 301

(A) The grantee cejtifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free wqrkplMC by:

(a) - Publishing a statement notifying employees that Uio unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibiiion;

(b) Establishing an ongoiog drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the grantee's policy of maiotaining a drug-froe workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace.

(c) Making ic a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) thai, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(I) abide by the terms of the statement; end

P37 Exhlbiu D thru H
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(e)

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
alternative I - for grantees OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OP EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT Ol'' AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) notify ihc employer in writing of his or her conviction for« violation of a criminal ding
statute occurring in the vrorkplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of conviaed employees must provide notice, including position tiUc. to every grant
officer on whose activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a eeniral point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numbcr^s) of each affected grant;

(0

(g)

Taking one of thc[following actions, wiUun 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2). with respect to any employee who is so convicted;

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the rtquircmcnls of the Rchobililation Act of 1973. as
emendediror

(2) Rcouiring such employee to participate saltsfaciorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rthabilitaiion program approved for such purposes by a federal, stale, or local health, law
enforccmeot, or other appropriate agency.

Making a good faith cfTort to continue lo mainliun a drug-free workplace through Implementation
of.paragraphs (a), (b). (c), (d), (c), and (0-

(B) The grantee may insert in
connection with the speci

the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
ic grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, lip code) (lisi each locaimn)

Check D if there arc workplaces on file thai arc not identified here.

Communitv Aciion Beltaao-Mmim.ck Counties,.Inc..
•  ---• Period covcrM by this Certificalion

Contractor Name

Jeanne Agri. Executive. . ,
"Name and Title of Authoriicd Contractor Rcprcsenlatiye

9/9/2020.

iGoij/r'ecror: RcprcscntaO Date

UHeAP2l

CPOAfM.SfiS

P37 Exhibits D thru H

P8|c;2:Or-.7' .
InitialialtCjft Ddic^' ,o-



NEW HAMFSHTRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-12), Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections I.I I and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYINC

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ifUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
LIHEAP

Contract Period: _ October I, 2020 to Sei^cmber 30,2021

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that;

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of (he undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub*
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, o member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the lihdfrsighiCd IKIll cdmpletd'dnd sublh'ifSuhdard Form LtL,'"Disclosure Form'to Report'Lobbying",
in accordance with Its instructions, attached and Identiried as Standard Exhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
subawards at all tiers (inciuding subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. i

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was !
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certirication shall be |

t.-toacivil penalty of not JgSt^n SI 0,000 and nol more than S 100,000 for each such failure.
i

Executive Director

^riTrictoriReprescniotiybS]^'^^ Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Progrom Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.. 9/9/2020 ——
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

-mc Coniractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with Ihc provisions of
Executive OfTtcc of the President, 'Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment. Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1. U and 1.12 of the Gcn^l Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSraiLrTY MATTERS - FRIMARy COVERED TRANSACTIONS

instructions/or Certi/tcafion

(1) By signing and fubmloing this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below. I -

m The inability of a person to provide the ccriification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
oarticipauon in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the ccrtificaridn. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with thcNH Office of Strategic Initiatives' dctermmaiion whether to enter into this transaction. However,
failure of the prospective pririiary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such
person from participation in Ais transaction. . . .. . j j. /^el

(3) The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed xvhcn OSI
determined to enter into this ransaction. If it is later determined that the prospective pnmary participant
knowingly rendered an crronwus certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal
Rovemment, OSI may tennin'ate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) prospccuve primary participant shall provide immediate >vri«en notice to the OSI agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitt'ed if at any time the prospective primary participant Icams that its certificalion
was erroneous when submittil or has become erronequs by reason of changed circumstances. ^

(5) The terms "covered iransactio^." "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible." "lower tier covered trtnucucn
"participant," "person." "prirnary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal, and voluntarily excluded,
as used in this clause, have llie meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the roles
implementing Executive Ordjsr 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. Sec the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submittjng.fhjs proi»sa^(coji^t)^al shoul^^ .
"covered wnMCtion'bc cnt'crcid into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authoriicd by OSI.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wil include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion. Uwcr Tier
Covered Transactions," prov|dcd by OSI, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in
all solicitations for lower licricovercd transactions. .. . .

(8) A participant in a covered tniAsection may rely upon a certification of a prospective partK:.pant m a lower tier
covered transaction that it is ̂ ot debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from ̂ c covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and •
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to.
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parlies). . . .

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be constnicd to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the cehificalion required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
pMlicipanl is not rcquir«J (0 fcxcMd that which is nomally possesset! by a pntdcnl person in the Oftl.nary
courseofbusinessdealings. . • •

(10) Exeept for transactions authJriicd under paragraph 6 of these mslruchons, if a participant in ̂  covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended debarred.
inellRible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, m addition to other remedies
available to the federal government. OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or defaull.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDINC DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Ctrtijication Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies lo the best of its kjiowlcdgc end belief, that it and its
principals: ,

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, artempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) arc not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govenunenlal entity
(federal, slate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposaJ had one or more public
(federBl, state or local) transactions lermlnaied for cause or defouU.

(2) Where ilie prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
■  . such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to (his proposal (contract).

Ccrtiftcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, /neliglbility and
Voluntary Exctusion - Lowtr Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prosp^tive lower tier participant, as defined in
"Ts'CFRPart 76. to the best ofiis k'nowlcclgeaiitj belicfllrat it and its principals:"'

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excludeid from participation in (his transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant Is uoable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant-further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibiliiy, and Volunlao' Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicilalions for

Executive Director .. . ..
^ntnictpr Representative Stature

.Community Action Program Bciknap-Mcrrimack Counties. Inc.,

Contractor's Representative Title

9/9/2020

Conlractof Name Date

/
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new HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

■n,e ConMctor identified in Sectii 1.3 of the Cenenil Provisions egrees by signature of the^nwctor'srepresentative es identified in Sect ons l.ll and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (cont/ael), the Contractor agrees to maJte reasonable etforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Oic Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Z

"  " 'T^iii'tractofiReprcscnlaiive ^
Contractor's Rcprcscnlative Title

knflft-Merrimflck,Q9iinlies..lnc. 9/9/2020

Conifactor Name
Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC rNITIATlVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Ptrt C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part C of Public Law 103-227, the "Pro-Children Act of 1994", smoking may not bepermined
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for (he provision of hcaKh, day care, education, or
library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperotive agreements, loans and loan
•guarantees, and eontracts. The law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities
Kinded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment.

The above language must be included in any subawards that contain provisions for children's services and that all
sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result In'
the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to S1,000 per day.

e"

.H^.Executive Director

Community••Adibn.PfQgram Bclknaf>-MefTimnclt Counties^ Inc.

Contractor's Representative Title

■9/9r2O70

Contractor Name Date
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FAP Approvil 10 Obli{ite

STATE

First 7/l/201d Wood ar>d SEAS Only

EXAMPLE ONLY

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16

CKhibil 1

TOTAL

rcONTRACTEO BUDGET ■ S38;220Ip0, S.646.370.00 4,562.60 357.200.00 6,546,372.60

eXPECreO BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED

' 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO 08UGATE 1 0.00 o.oo O.OO 0.00 1,165.651.00

■ TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

o.oo

536^.00

■  1,165.551.00
4,460,919.00

0.00

4.582.60

0.00

357,200.00

1.165.551.00

5,360,821.60

BMCA

first 7/.1/20.19. . AOMIN.. .. .FA.RROGRAM. SEAS. . ASSURANCE16- TOTAL. .

1 CONTRACTED BUDGET . . 1 95,663.00.... 1,00.3,586.00. .... 1,000.00 69.960.00 1,170.209.00 1

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY .OBLIGATED. 0.00... . .0.00 .0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00.

ITHIS APPROVAL TO. OBLIGATE .  o.oo 207.112.00 .  0.00 0.00 207,112.00 . 1

TOTAL AVAILASLE'TO OBLIGATE
NOT authorized TO OBLIGATE

0.00

95.663.00

207.112.00
798.474.00

0.00

1,000.00

0.00

69.960.00

207.112.00

963.097.00

SNHS

First 7M/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 163.777.00 1,718.162.00 "IJO00:00, •• •<6:4.220.00 i;967:1'49.00 j

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

o.oo

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 '  0.00 0.00 354,678.00 f.

total available TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00

163.7n.OO

354.576.00

1,363.574.00

0.00

1,000.00

0.00

84,220.00

354.576.00

1.612.571.00

SCS

Fintl7/1rt0l9 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 1.6 TOTAL

ICONTRACTEO BUDGET 83,835.00. 879,50.1.0.0 625.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00 1.

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00.. . .

1 THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,604.00 .  0.00 0.00 181,504.00 1

TOTAL AVAILABLE TQ OBUGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

O.PQ .
83,635.00

161.5CM.0P

697,997.00

0.00

625.00

0.00

64,960.00

181,504.09
847.617.00

CAPSC

First 7/1/2019 .AOMIN. FA PROGRAM . .  SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTEO'BUOGET 54;676:00 ■  • ■673:693:00 757.60 55,110.00 664.136.60 1
EXPECTED BUDGET •
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.oo'

0.00
0.00

ITHIS'APPROVALTO OBUGATE o.oo 118,373.00 O'.OC " 0.00 116,373.00 1

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00
54,676.00

118,373.00
455.220.00

0.00
757.60

0.00
55,110.00

118,373.00
565,763.60

TCCA
First 7/1/2019 AOMIN.. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

.ICONTRACTEO BUDGET 140,269:00 1,471,538.00 . 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,695,767.00 j.

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00

JTKIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00 J

TOTAL AV/ULABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

UHEAPII
CFDA«9}.S6t

0.00
140,269.00

303.984.00
1,167,654.00

0.00
1.000.00

0.00 303.984.00
82,950.00 1,391,773.00

P37 ^iNt 1
CooMWOr Imiia&QpL.



NEW HAMPSHIRJE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

/

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITV
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual federal grants equal to or greater (ban S2S,000 and awarded on or after October I, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated rirst-iier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part MO {ReportingSubaward ond Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to (he FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Nameofentity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts! CFDA program number for grants
5) .Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the'purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique IdMtifter of the entity (DUNS tl)
10) ToialcompensaUon end names of the top five executives if: '

0. More than S0% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those
revenues are greater-thon S25M annually, and

b. Compensation information is not already availflble through reporting to (he SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA-rcqulred dale by the end of the month plus 30<lays in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

irhe Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Svbaword and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
provisions, execute the following Certification;

The below named Contractor agrMs to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
rjnencihr AccouhtabiiMTi^d.Transparency Act.

life-
(G^l^ctop Representative.^il^tureturi

'J^nne Agr'i.;Execuiivc Director-

) (Auihoriaed Contractor Representative Name &• Title)

CrimmunirvAaioh-Progrftm.BclknatvMerTimBck Counties. Inc. ■ . 9/9/2026
(ContnctorName) (Date)

Contnclof; Initials Q

Page I or2
LIHEAP2I CFDAW3.J68



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INll lATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J
^  FORMA

Section 1.3 of the Gcner*! Provisions. I certify that the responses to theAs the Contractor identified in
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your enlity is: 97:?^."?.?^^- ■ - ''

2. In your business or organizition's preceding completed fiscal ycar..did your business or
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue m U.S. federal contracts, sul^nlracls, loans,
granu sub-gnum, and/or coo^rative agrccmenis; and (2) S25.000.000 or more .n annual gross revenues
from U-S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or coop^l.vc agreements?

X NO

If the answer to #12 above is NO, stop here.

If the answer to ##2 above Is YES. please answer the following:

3 Docs thepublic havcaccesJto information about thccompcnsalionoflhc executives in your busing
or organixjilion through periodic rcpons filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of^ Exchange Act
of 1934(15 U.S.C.78m(B), 78o(d))or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

.NO YES

'if the answer to W3 above b YES, stop here.

If the anLcr to #0 above Is NO, please aoswer (he following:
4. The names and corilp^nsltion of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows: '*

Name:

Name:

Name:

Nome; ̂

Name:.

Amount:..

Amount:..

Amount:^,

Amount*

Amount;

• i"trn''—n'-^
Date:H9ismB:
?Hc7or-2
Lm£A?2»CFDA«3.5«



State of New Hampshire

HepartMeiit of State

CERTIFICATE

1. Wiilam M. Ctrdncr. Secretary ofSuteof tbe Sui« of New Rtmpshitt. do hereby eatify that COM^fUNTTY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERJUMACK COUNTICS. fNC. is • New Hampshire Nonproni Ccrportiioa

to trtnsaei business to New Hampshire on May 38. >96S. I furtba certify (hat all fees and documents requtrcd by (he Secretary of

Stale's ofTtce have been recdvod and is in (ood sundini as far is this office it concerned.

Busiaeai ID: 63011

Ccriiricate Numba: 0004913691

Op

%

S
6

44
A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause lo be afTUod

ihc Seal of the Sute of New Hampshire,

this 111 day of June A.D. 2030.

William M. CanfawT

Secretary of Sute



Community Action Program Bclknap-Mcrriroack Counties, Inc.

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I  Rrthen Krieecr .

Inc fhcrcinaftcr the "Corporation"). » New'Hamp^ire corporatton. hereby certify that: (1) 1 am the
Selected and acting Secretary-Clerk of the Corporation; (2) 1 maintain and have cust^y and arn
familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with
respect to the contents of s'uch books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corportnon have
.uthorizcd, on nV]2nm , S"eh .uthorUy to bo in force and clToct un„l

(see anached)

ow listed posilion(s) arc authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of
jf other inslAimcni for the sale of products and services:

The pcrson(s) holding the be
the (iorporalion any conuact

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director
Michael Tabory, Deputy Director

Steven E. Cregoirc, Budget Analyst
Dennis Marlino, President, Board of Directors

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampsliire, (staw of
incorporation) law and the by-laws of Ihe CorporaUon; and (6) said authonMt.on has not beert
modified, amended or rtscinlied and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt
of dated minutes or copy of ajrticic or section of authorizing by-law must be attached.

hcrcOfitoTsct. my hand M:thc;--G|crkySp.OT
this'ydflv'of figptember 2020 . ■

..Secrciary;Cierk ..

STATE OF NEW KAMFSHlJtE
COUNTY OF MERRiMACK.

nnrhis 9'^ day of ^^ptember 2020 . before .

undersigned Officer, personal appeare;d_^EMLM£g3iiiL_:Who acknowledged himself to be the
Sccrctaiy-Clerit of Community Action Program Bclknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.. a corporation
and that shedte as such Sccr|tary-Clcrk being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing insUument
for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I hereunto set my hand and offi.ciaXscal:.

; Publi^JOs.iidc^ftl^^ îcace

Commission Expiration Date OANieULf 0. 6Mfm • . /
Justice of tho Peac* • NowHampehli*.' >•'
MyComm»«ion Explras May 20, 20?5



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CORPORATE RJESOLUHON

The Board of Directors of Conununily Action Program Belknap-MciTimack Coimties,
inc. authorizes the Executive Director, Deputy Director, Budget Aoalyst, Chief Accountant,
President, Vice-Prcsident(s) or Treasurer of the Agency to sign contracts and reports with the
State of New Hampshire, Departments of the Federal Government, which include all federal
#269 and #272 Forms, and public or private nonprofit agencies incltuiing. but not limited to. the
following:

.  • Department of Administrative Services for food distribution programs .
•  Department of Education for Nutrition programs
•  Department of Health and Human Services

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for elderly programs
Bureau ofHomcless and Housing Services for homeless/housing programs
Division of Children, Youth, and Families for child care programs
Division of Family Assistance for Conununily Services Block Grant
Division of Public Health Services for public health programs

Department of Justice forchildadvocacy/lherapy programs
Department of Transportation-Public Transportation Bureau for transportation programs
Public Utilities Commission for utility assistance programs
Workforce Opportunity Council for employment and job (raining programs
Department ofNatural and Cultural Resources
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) for Low Income Energy Assistance,
Wcatherization, SEAS and Block Grant programs

New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority
'New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority'
New Hampshire Secretary of State
U.S. Department ofHcalth and Human Services
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
U.S.DcpartmenioftheTreasury-IntcraalRevcnueScrvice
and other departments and divisions as required

This Resolution authorizes the signing of all supplementary and subsidiary documents
necessary to executing the authorized contracts as well as any modifications or amendments
relative to said contracts or agreements.

This Resolution, was approved by the Board of Directors of Community Action Program
Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc. on March 12,2020, and has not been amended or revoked
and remains in effect as ofthe date listed below.

9/9/2020

Dale ^Rpb,ert'Kjrcgcr
Secrctary/Clcrk

SEAL
''' A|CTcy C^foiiu ltudhi(i»n VWW
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Financial Statements

■.K/lERRiltflAGKi^d W \kt.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019 AND 2018

AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS
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i^Rm^
ravnanLusnaant

czxnnn PU3UC ACCouNTAyn

To the Board o( Directors

Cooimunity Action Program Balknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. smmuii
Concord. New Hampshire

. INDEP6NDENT AOOrrORSffiEP^KT

.  . . I . . '
sfieoort-omfhe'WffarTcrey-^fafernenjst
We have audil^ the accompanying financial statements ol Community Action Program
Belknap^errimack Counties'. Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the sia^enls or
financial position as of February 26. 2019 ar>d 2016, and the reiated statements of activities,
functional expenses and cash fiows. and notes to the financial statements for the years then
ended.

tlilaneaemthi'sResoonsit>ih'tyi6HhV&^^ Stotomonts
'Management is respdnislble for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this Indudes the design, imptementation. and maintenance of Internal Gontrct.retev8nt
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatemertt. whether due to fraud or error.

.Atidf('6fs^:'Re'SDons1hl'ntv/
'Dur respohslbility Is "to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We condi^ed our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial'audits contained in
Qovemmenl Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Slates.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misslatemenl.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' -
judgment,'including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of (he financial
stalements. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the eudllor
considers internal control relevant to the enlKy's preparation and fair presentation of the
firtancial statements In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efiectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinbn. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
slgnificani accounting estimates made by managemerit. as weU as evaluating (he overall
presentation of the financial statements.

/

We believe that the sudh evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



.CiolMbn.
In our opinion, the fir>ancial statements referred to above present fairty. in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. as of
February 28. 2019 and 2018, and the changes in tt^ir net assets and their cash flows for the
years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Oth^r.lnformoUon

Our ̂ 11 was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code 0/ Fedora/ Rogutdtions (CFR) Part 200. Uniform Aaministrotiye Rcquiremonts. Coaf
Principles ondAudil Requiromonts for Fedorel Awards, is presented for purposes of oddltJonal
analysis and is not a required part of the finandal statements. Such information Is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accountir>g and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been'6ub)ected to the audcting procedures applied In the audll of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting end other records used to prepare the rmancial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other eddrllonal procedures In accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United Stales of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairty stated, in all material respects, in relation to the finandal statements as a whole.

■OtheYR'ed6Wnd.R'eauiFbd:iiVGbvefftmdM!^^
In accordance with Government Auditing Stendards. we have also issued our report dated
January 16. 2020. on our oonsi^ration of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties. Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with
certain provlsiona of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporiing and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an inl^rai part of an
audit performed in accordance with Goyemmenf Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Belkrwp-Mefrimack Counlies. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
ar>d compliarroe.

Cor>cbfd, New Hampshire
January 16. 2020



X;(^MUNITYACTI0W:PR9GRAMmELi<KlAR.MERRtMAGKCQTjMfrF^^^

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iFEB'RUARY-!'3'8'r:7bl fl -AND gO'l 6*

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts recoWable

Inventory
Prepetd oxpohses
InvestmenU

Total current esiets

PROPERTY

Land, buildir>o* end improvernenU
EqulpmenL fumHure and vehicles

Total pro^dy

Less occufflulsted depreciation

Property. rMl

OTHER ASSETS
Ouo from robted party

Total other assats

TOTAL ASSETS

tiiABiii m e's • jNO n ct as sets
I

CURRENT UABILrriES

Current portion of notes payable

Accounis payable

Accrued expenses
Rehirrdable advances

Total currerri Qablittias

LONO TERM LIABILITIES '
Notes poysblo. leas current portion shown ebore

Total liabRiSes

NET ASSETS 1

Without Donor Re sIrlcUons •

With Donor Restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILrriES AND NET ASSETS

Sec Notes to FinincisI Statomenls

3

221®

1.el1,762
2.32t.041

22.600

$2,632
.  l02rS22-

.  2ai8

$  1.751.6BS

2.993,405
26.507

66.267
96.763

3,9.10.767. .,4.9$6.60r

-•li*;7.i0;6.>-3.
.5(479:32br

rt:72f:g9;3^

6;"^,660

4,396.4.1.3.

130.441

139jM.1.

4.634.220
6.227.722

10.661.942

6.936.608

. 3.925.134

139.441.

. 139.441

!• 6.'448;614 5. ;6;023;2'72'

$  163.269

1.069.165

1,066.748
■ .996.332

3,317.514

.. .761.365.

■ ■-4.098.699

3.642.297
507.415

4.349.712

5  172.745
1.443.697
1,056.676
1.167.333

3,680,451

962.781

4.823,232

3.497.187
702,653

4.200.040

J. 6,446611 $ ..9.023.272



rcQMMtjNITVACTl6w.aRQ-CRAWBFLi<-fyAP.»1ER

STATEMEKt OF ACTMTIES
KQR^.YEAWfeWbgO.fEBRU^

revemucs ano other support
Grant vtvardi
Ottter funds

.ln-4Und

United Way

Total revenues end other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

SMsrtes and wages

Payroll taxes and benerits
Travel

Occupancy

Program servtcas
Other costs

Oeprodotlon
In-kind

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

24.779.227

345.110

3-497.;t87;

(195.436)

■.702.eS3.

Without Donor With Donor 2019

RffWfUop?, ^Rectrldib'ns Total

5  19.205.554 S $  16.205.554
4.708.406 169.246 4.875.654

629.404 . 026.464
18.227 16.227

24.759.653 169.246 24,926.669

:-364f664- .  .;(564;664)'

25.124.337 .  (195.4381 24.926.699

6,905.642 t a.905.642
2,426,774 - 2.426.774

324.491 . 324.461
1.3t0.4n t 1.310.477
6.041.429 . 6.941.429
1.707.999 - 1.707.999

330.491 . 330.491
629.924 829.924.

.24,779.227

149.672

4.200.040

. 3';642.297 I 507.415 S 4.349.7t2

See Notes to Finincial Statements

4



X0MMUrtlTYAfcft&NP.fj5CRAM-BfeLktjAP-:-MERRtMA

STAT6MEWT0F ACTIVrriES

-

Without Oano<
Reetrtctlont .

With Oonor

.Restrietlont.

2018

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Gforii (Kvardt

Ottw Ajndi

tn-4(ind

United Way

t  17.935.547

V53S.S01
1.147,970

30.517

$

2.670.131

t*

S  17.035.647

4.408.632

^1.147.978
30.517

ToUl revonuea and other aupport 20.652.643 2.870,131 23,522.974

NET ASSET3 RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 2.811.369 .  .(2,811,369)

Total 23.464.232 58.7.42 .  23,522.974

EXPENSES

Salaiiaa end wage*
Payroll tares and beoef&s
Travel

Occvpancy
Program tervices
Other costs

Depreciation
In-kfrtd.

8.295.198

2.054.985

281.239

1.222.773

7.979,371

1.636.269

, 238.706
-U47ATfl'

•

8,295.196

2.054.965

281.230

1.222.773
7.979.371

1.638.289
236,706

1.147,978

Total experaee -^'.854.499 1 .  22.854.499

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 609,733 58.742 .'E^B;4y^

NET'ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 2.887.454 6^^:1.11 = S.53T;58'5-

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S  ,.3.497..ie7 .S 702.653 $  4.200.040

$«o Notts to FinancUl Stat£m«nts
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■Cn'MMUYlfTYACnaMftfROGrtAMvBELkNAP.-MPRRItitACK:^^^

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
COR THE YEARS EWDgP FEBRUA'RY;;6i:i6T9 A><a^^^^

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES
Chano^ In net atiets
Adju«tfneht» to foconcilo cAai^o in not ooaelo to

net caih pnivldod by openitind odivHiea;
. Oeprectalion

Decreaae (rncrease) \n cummi assets:
Accounts receNebto
Inventory
Propfid expenses

Decrease Oncreste) In current liabtfities:
AcDounls payeble
Accrued expenses
Relundabte advances

NET CASH PROVtOED.BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM IMVE8T1N0 ACTlVFTtES
Addhkms to property
Investment In partnership

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVfTlES
I

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANpINO ACTIVITIES
Repoyment of long term debt'

net cash USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH.

CASH OALANCE. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORWATION:
Ceih paM dunr>o the year for Interest

2019

149.672

201B

666.479

330.491 236.706

672.364 (631.433)
3.767 (5.037)

3S.6S5 6.028

(37A.532) S9S.090
' 10:072 37,290
p«9;oo.iy 26^002

636.466 735.981

(603.770) (523.729)
. 13.769) _  (1.3.528)

.  ..(607,639) .  ... (537.257)

.  . .,.(li7.3i'6t2"V .  . ...(4.78i:i"8"3V

,  . M70.672), (170.3631

it339;923;^ 10.341

1-.T5r.i05 1.732.344

S • 1.-t4Yl":-7.62. t  1 751.665

5  63.133 S  73.562

See Notes to Financial Statcmonb

S



COMf^\:fWTy. ACTION PgOQRAM BELKNAP:..M^RRlMftCK C0UNTTES-1WC'-

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR-TWE-YEAR ENDEDlREBRUARY-?8v'rtitf.

Sola/tes ond wroges
Poyrull taxes and benefttc
Tfsvd

Occupancy
Program Servioo*
Othor costs:

Aoeovnttng fees
Legal feos
SuppQes
PbsUtge and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
PdritJng and publications
Conferences, oenventions and meetings
Interact

Insurence

Membership fees
Utility end melnlienance
Computer services
Oihor

Oeproclallon
In-kind

Total functional exponsec

PfOflcam fMan'aa'emeni' Total

I 8.662.073 $ 223.569 S 6.905.642
2.320.432 108.342 2.426.774
323,333 1.158 324.461

1.293.439 17.038 1.310.477
8.041.429

• 6.941,429

. 57.992 57.892
19.SS4 3,520 23.074

254.S4$ m 284.548
S3.I34 53.134

2.208 .. 2.208
45.786 3.732 46.516
22.840 27.846 50.686

46.476 16.655 63.133
143.136 6.760 149.896

9.891 0.093 18,884
214.214 4 214.214
37.562 1,304 38.666

701.232 612 701,844
330.461 K 930.491
629.624 - 829.924

.s • . ..

} 24.301.704 5 477,523 i 24.779,227

See Notes to Flnincia! SlstemerM*
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•  STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAJL EXPENSES
p(^pTAe>YEAR>eN06D'PEBRUARy?6:a048.

Setsrtet end wogee

Peyrofl Uxes ond benefits
Tmvel

Oocupency
Progrem Services
Other costs:

Aocounting tees
Le^sl fees
Si/ppCes '
Postage and shipping
Equipmeflt rental end metnteoP'ice
Pdnling end pubCeatlons
Conferences, conventions or^ meeltngs
Interest

lnsumr>ce

MemPership lees
Ulfiity end maintenar>ce
Computer services
Other

Depredatton
In-kind

Totot functlonel expenses

.^'roorsmi Mbnooement- Tout

t  fi.026.2gi $  266.907 6 6.295.196 ■

1.94e.ft39 100.126 2.0&4.96S

279.820 1,410 281.239

1.107,004 115,769 1.222.773

7.979.371 -  •
7,979.371

24.015 27,549 52.464

5.137 1. 5.137

216.553 26.718 263.271

49.153 1,052 50.205

1.660 > 1.660

1.643 27.649 31.292

13730 0.544 23.274

66774 5.306 73.562

123.457 35.257 156.714

19,045 6.666 27.713

185.662 64.390 250.272

21.517 17.179 36.696

645.081 14.666 659.969

231.059 4.747 236.706

1.147.076 ... 1.147,976

I 22 j 19.336 $  735.161 $ 22.654,499

See Notes to Flnmclsi SUtements
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1.

GQMMliNITyACTIOyPRC^RAj^BELffy^^^

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THEVARS ENDED FfegRUARV.^

-(5ft'6AyiZft€lQN'^pgijlMMAW^'-6l?:S

Ntt'turo-of.6rqanlg«'t{'on"
Community Action Program BelKnap - MarrimocK Counties, Inc. (the Orgenlzation) Is o
New Hampshire nonprofit orgonizol/on that serves nutritiortaJ, health, (ivirvg and support
needs of the low income and elderly dients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services ere provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

.BaS'fegf'j^c'c'ouritfnQ:
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accnial basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America.

N'ew*Acc6bhtinQ PI:dnbuhd%Myf^t'
On August IB, 2016, FAS6 issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-profit Entities (Topic - 9S8) •
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Enlhies. The update addresses
the complexity and understandabllity of net asset classification, deficiencies in
information about liquidrty and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in
the type of information provided about expenses and investment return. ' The
Organizatioo has presented these statements accordingly. The ASU has beer> applied
retrospecttvety to all periods presented.

Financial Staterh4nt Presontatlon

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepered in accordance wilh
U.S. gerterally accepted accounllng principles, which require the Organization to report
Information regardmg Its financial posillon and activities according to the foDowing net
asset dessifications:

■Nef .assets., wffhouf.donor restrictions rrrdude net assets that are not
9ub}ect to any donof-imposed resirictions and may be expended for any
purpose In performing the primary objectives of (he Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organizailon's
mar^agement and board of directors.

Ne( assots with donor nesfncf/ona Include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donori'arid grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions win be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor rasthctions are perpetual
in nature, wtieret^y the donor has stipulated Ihe funds be maintained In
perpetuity.



Donor restricted convtouitons are reported as inaeases )r> n«( assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are rcclassified from r>ct assets with
donor restrictions tojnet assets without donor restrictions In the statement of activities.
The Or^aniration had net assets with donor reslriclions of $S07.415 artd J702.B53 at
February 28. 2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13.

Ineomo Taxes » ^ ^ ,
TTte Organization is organized as a ftonprorrt corporaiion and is exempt from federal
income taxes under internal Revenue Code Section S01(c)(3). The Internal Revenue
Service has determined them to be other than a private foundation.

The Organization Tiles information returns in the United States and the Stale of New
Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for
years l>elOfe 2015. I

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740). Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the mirilmum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measunng. the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its lax position taken on its information returns for the years (2016 through 2019). and
has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes Is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Pf^ertyand equipihent is recorded at cost or. if donated, at the approximate lair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life In excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a tower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Deprccialion is computed ot\ the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as foltows;

BuiWirlgs and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furnilure and vehicles 3 • 7 years

Use of Estimates . ^

The preparation of financial slatements in conformity with United Slates generally
accepted accounti^ principtes requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues end expenses during the reporting period. Actuel results
could differ from those estimates.

raRh nnd.Gaati feq'ulyaierits u
purpbsei of the statement of cash-.flp.^; the..9f9ani?6tJon: con?id^^ all tiqjW

inves^ents purchased with original maVgntJ^^s of thiqe; mOo.t.^»s: or 1?.ss to be^^^h
eouivalents The Organization maintains iis cash in bank deposit accounts, whjch at
^es'-may exce'e'd-ifb&fSIly insured limits. The Organization has not expeneripedany

and believes it is not c^tpoUd; to any significant r«k: with
rcspfed to' ihe^>' Bt^cpunts;. ■

bona^ serviceTam'recognized as contributions in accordance with FAS9 ASC f^o.
958. Accounting To/j ConrriOur/ons Received end Ccntn'bulions Made, r( the services (a)

10



create or enhar^e nor>-nnancjal assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

services througbout the -year that .'are! r>ot recognized as
ijdo^.mbiuhjjnis.ifi'Ure^ statements slnc^-the recogrii'tior* criiefjg under FASB ASC

Were wt mei.

■lh>KjndjDdn[a't<bris./.fJoncash •Transaction's,

2TO-l!9;eruf?20A6;, respectively; Bsifollowsf'
The Organization ^^jvcs cqrtlributed professional .seivJpeV jha'U.ar6-tequined to be
recorded in accor^;^yi«'with .F^AS|i'^ No. 958. the.^^sUMated
services «vas determined to be $35,519 snd $292,141 for uiei years ei^ed February 28,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Organization also receives contributed food-pp.nnmod)ties ar^ other-QbOdsVth'al'are
required to be recorded in accordance with FA|SB AsiC-No. 95d. !cstifhtfUs'o fair
value of these f^'d .^mrrtj^iljes and goods was deterrrii'neb to be $793,945' and
$846,237 forthe.ye'ars.er^ed February 28. 2019 and 2016, respeclivety.
The Agency pays below-marVel rent for the use of certain facilities. In accordance with
nAAitrallu aXrAKfiM a^rtunlinA nrin^inlAe tha

.T-*ei5s'->v y.'.n»Ki.u.y•ouuM tw.dbx'uoitjiniinuo,lo De•^«^;ouy forllte;^ar;ended Fe.bl!Oary 28..20'it.8;. Th'ewwas-noidbhB'Uon-forih'c'.yg^^^^

.A'dverHstfiqj
The Organlzstioo expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 28. 2019 and 2016 totaled $54,461 and $32,655,
respectively.

tnventohr
■ Inventory consists of weatharization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the fifst-in, first-^ut method.

.F.uncti'onal'Atrocefibn of;ExpcTises>
The costs of providing the various programs and otfier activities have been presented in
the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have t>een allocated
among the program services and supponing activities benefited. Expenses are charged
to each program based on the direct exper^ses incurred or estimated usage based on
time spent on each program by staff.

Expense NIethod.of allocation
Wages and benefits Time'arid effort
Oepreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct essignmenl

11



14. ^RElJVTEDBARTy.tfiiANS'A'CXtONS.
The Organization is related to the following corporation as a result of common
management:

Related:PaW.

!

CAP8MC Oevdopnient Corporation

Function

Real Estate Development

There was $139,441 due from CAP6MC Development Corporalion at both February 20,
2019 and 2016.

The Organization serves as the management egenl for the following organizeltona:-

Related Party

Belmonl Elderly Housing. Inc.
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc.
Alton Housing for the Elderly. Inc.
Pembroke Housing for the Elderty. Inc.
Ncwbury Elderly Housmg. liK.
Kearsarge Elderty Housing. Inc.
Riverside Housing Corporation
Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership

(

Twin Rivers Community Corporalion
Ozanam Place. Inc.!

I'

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I.

HUO Property
HUD Property
HUO Properly
HUD Property
HUO Property
HUO Property
HUD Property
Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Propeiiy
Property Development
Transitional Supportive

Services

Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property

The services peffotincd by the Organization Included, martcetirig. accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUO properties). HUD compliance (for the HUO properties), and
maintenar>oe of pro^rty.

The total amount diie from the related parties (oollectivety) at February 28. 2019 and
2018 was $185.937!and $114,032, respectively and is Included In accounts receivables.

r
i

1

15. RECLASSIFICATldN
Certain amounts and eccounls from the prior year finariaal statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability wHh the presentation of the current year.

16 PAIR VALUE OF F.INANCtAL INSTRUMENTS
Community Action Program eelknap-Merriniack Counties. Inc. t^as also invested money
relating to its Fix-It program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the moluel funds
totaled 5101.522 and $97,753 at February 28. 2019 and 2018. respectively.

16



ASC Topic No. 825-10, Finandal instruments, provides e definition of fair value vvtiich
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measurlrtg fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FAS6 ASC 620,
the OrganiMtion may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As. a basis (or considering mericet participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FAS8 ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, wfiich prioritizes the Inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy urxler FAS8 ASC 620 are
described as foltows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology ere quoted prices available in
active markets for idenilcdl investmenis as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of '
models or other vatuation methodotogies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is EtUe or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to (he
pricing of (he asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 26,2016 and 2018, the Organization's investmerits were dasstfied as Level 1
and were based on fair value.

Fair Valise Measurements using.Slonlficant Observable Inputs (Leveil I

2Q19 2016

Beginning balance - mutual fur>ds $ 67,753 ( 84,225
Total gains (losses) - mutual funds 3.769 9,528
Purchases 4.000..

Ending balance-mutual funds ' *5 "lO^i . &7!'753-

The. carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets end current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization also has St.OOO invested in a Partnership. The Lakes Region
Parir>ership for Public Health, at February 28, 2019 and 2016.

17



17. FISCAL AGENT ;
'Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties. Inc. acts as (he fiscat agent
for the foltowing community organizations: Franklin Community Seorlces BuMIng
(Frantdin). the Common Pantry (Laconia). the Caring Fund {Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, the NH Rotary Food Challenge and FGP/SCP Associalion Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and oversight of the revenues received
(donations) and the'expenscs (utilities, food and emergency aenrices).

18. -SUBSE'QlilEfjT gVfeNTS:
Subsequent events;are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before the finandel statements are available to bo issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
condftiofts that exteted at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Norwecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of,financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through January 16. 2020. the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

16



$URPLEMENTtfL.(NFORMAT(ON'

(See Indopendont Auditors' Report)
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NQTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDIFEBRUARY 28. 2019

N0TE1 BASISi-ORP^
The accompanying sche^le of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program BelKnap-
Merrimeck Cpunties. Inc. under prograrhs of the federal government for the year
ended February 20. 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance vvith (he requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federe/ RoQulathns
Part 200. Uniform Administrstivt Roquirements. Cost Principles, end Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Gutdanoe). Because the Schedule
presents only; a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

t

1

NOTE 2 SUMMARyvdP.SIGNVFICA^
Expenditures {reported on the Schedule are rg^ril.ed, on the accrual basis cf^
accounting. Such expenditures are recogniz^ following the cost principles'
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of experiditures are not
aDowable or are Omited as to reimbursemerrt. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made In the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

I

NOTE 3 INDIRECT GbST.RATE
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under (he Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4
'Non'monelaryi assistance is retried in'the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodrties received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVB^NMENirMOmN'G'iSrANQ'Anb'Si

To Che Board of OirectorB
Community Action P/ogram BeOcnap-MerrimacK Countiea, IrK.
Concord. New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generalty accepted In the United
Slates of A/nerIca and the standards applicable io fcnanciai audits contained in Govemmenr
Auditing Standdrds issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the rmandal
statements of Community Action Program BelKnap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise tt>e statement of financial position as of Febniary 28. 2019 and
2018. and the related statements of activities, cash Hows, and functional expenses for the
years then ended, and the related r>oies to the financial statements, and have Issued our
report thereon dated Jarujary 16.2020.

Jn(erna(-^ontmlJ6v.erPjnancl'o^1i'9ootiinO'
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s interrial control over financial reporting
(Inlernal controO to determir^e the audit procedures (hat ere appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing, an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program BefKnap-
MerrlmacA Counlies, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Menimack CounUes, Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency In internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, In the rxjrmal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect ar>d correct mrsstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such (hat there is e reasonable
possibility that e material misstalement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or delected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

t

22



Our consideration of inlerrwl control was lor Ihe limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all defidenctes in interral conirol
that might be material weaknesses or signllicant deficiencies ar^d therefore, material
weaknesses or signrficant defrciencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2010-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

As part of obtaining reasonablo assurance about whether Community Action Program
Bdknap-Merrimacit Counties. Inc.'s fmer^dal statements are free from molcriol misslatemcnt.
we pefformod tests of Us compliance with certair> provisions of Iws. regulations, contracts,
and arent agreements, noncompliance wHh v&kt\ could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of finafKial statement amounts. However, provding an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordir^gly. we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instar^s of noncompliance or
other matters that ere required to be reported under Govemmenl Auditing.Standards.

is sotefy to describe the scope of our testing of internal control end
compBance and the results of that testing, and not lo provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Ofoanization's internal control or on compliance. This report is en integral part of an audit
performed in accordBr>ce vrith CovemmenI AudHing Stendards in consrdenr^ me
Organiiation's internal control and compliance. Accordingly. Ihis communcation is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Concord. New Hampshire
January 16.2020
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INDEPGNOENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPUANCE

BfeQUIRED BY fHE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program BctKnap^erhmadi Counties. Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Repofl'OnMotnDllBncejtor'-^tich-M'elorif^jibrBf Program'
'We have audited Conirhunity' Adlbri Program Eiclknai^errimacK Counties. Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requiremenis described in the 0M8 CompiiBnn Supplsment that
could have a dired and material effect on each of Community Action Program Beiknap.
Morrimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28. 2019.
Community Action Program Belknap-Meirimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying scrftedute of findings
end questioned costs.

■M<indQe?nenf[sffffifpdos"tfyf/h^^
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulaiions. and the terms
end conditions of Its federal awards appllcabie to Ks federal programs.

^uditdrs '^fieiSiioh'ilbfh'tv ■
Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community "Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of cornpllanoe in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of America; the
standards eppliceble to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stendords, Issued
by the Comptrolter General of the United States; and the audit requirements of tille 2 U.S.
Code of Pedemt ReguleUons Part 200, Uniform Administmtive Requiremenis. Cost Principles,
end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompllence with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
Includes examining, on e tesi basis, evidence about Community Action Program Beiknap-
Mcrrimack Counties. Inc.'s compliance wilh those requiremenis and pertofming such other
procedures as we considered necessary In the circumstances.

Wo believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit docs not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Program Belknap-Memmack Counties. Inc.'s compliance.
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6b/ri'/on .dfi^Eocft Ma/o'r 'Wcfefj7- fffbgram
In our opinion. ComnrtunHy Action Progranri Bellcnap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above thai could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28.2019.

:-/?goorf;on:/nfernef.*Cbr^ffof Ov.erCompiianeo
'MenegemnFof Convnunity Action Prdgrem Belknap4«lerrimack Counties. Inc. is responsible
for establishing arvi maintaining effective internal control over compliance wHh the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and perfonritng our audil of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc.'s
Internal corttrol over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal.program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the drcumstsnces for me purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test end report on Internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for ihe purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Werrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliarw».

A defrdency in tnlemai corttrol over compliance exists when (he design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow martagemcni or employees, in the r>ormel course of
performing their assigned furtctions. to prevent, or detect and correct, nortcompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
Internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
nonoompliance with a type of compliance requiremeni of a federal program win nol be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant defrciency in internal
control over compliance is e deficiency, or a combination of defidendes. in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than 8 material weakness in Internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by Ihose charged with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for ihe limited purpose described jn
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to kJenlify all deficlendes in Internal
control over compliance that might be malerial weaknesses or significant defidancies. Wo did
not identify any deficiencies In Inicrnal control over compliance thai we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is sotely to describe the ecopd of
-our testing of internal control over compliance and the resutts of that lestir>o based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordir>gIy, this report is nol suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 16, 2020
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEb;F.EBRO&ft^ 28: 2di§

SUMWARyOF-Aljpl^^^

1. The auditors' report expresses an urwnodified opinion on whether the financlat statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Mernmack Counties, inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. One materiel weakness relating to the audit of the finarKial statements is reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internet Control Over Finencial Reporting and on
Compliance end ofher Moffers Based on en Audit of Finencial Stetements Pertomed in
Accordance wltA Government AudHJng Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc., which would-be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Siandards were disclosed during the audit

4. No etgnificanl deficiencies in internal control oviar major federal award programs are
reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program end
On tntemal Control Over Complionce Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on comp(iar>c« for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Courtties. Irrc. expresses an unmodified opiniorr on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The.programs tested as major programs indude:
U.S. Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services. Low Incorrie Home Energy Assistance
Program 93.568. Aging Closter.93.044.93.045 and 93.053. Social Services Block Grant
93.667, U.S. Oepartiirent of Agricullure. Women. Infants and Children 10.557, U.S.
Department of Transportation, Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509. Enliariced
Mobility of Seniors ar^ Individuals with Disabilities 20.513.

'8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was 5750,000.

9. Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk auditee.
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FINDINGS • FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

material WEAKNESS

2019-001

Condition: Th6 financial statements presented to the a.udKor el the beginning of
fieldwdrk ynd,eretated r>€l Income by a material amount. This was primarily the result of
Irriproper cut off due lo revenue related to the fiscal year under audit being recorded to the
sut^Quent period.

Criteria: The Orgar^lzatlon's Wernol control procedures should be structured so that
accounts are reconciied and reviewed on a timely basis and a review Is completed prior lo
closing the financtai records for the year.

Cause: The Organization lost staff and their accumulated knowledge of Fiscal
Department processes and procedures. This led to gerveral ledger entries being posted late
or mis-posted.

Effect: Significant adjusting journal entries were proposed by the auditor to ensure
accurate revenue cut off for the period under audit. Additionally, the auditor proposed a
significant adiusUr>g entry to reduce expenses as a result of worVers' compensation
insurance expenses being over-accrued.

/?ecommertdaf/on5; The auditors recommend that the Organization Implemeni
procedures so that balance sheet eccounts are reconciled and reviewed by management
on a monthly baste. Further, the auditors recommend that the financial closing process be
simplified and include a review of all significant balance sheet and profit and loss eccounts.

Views of Responsible Officiels: Staff turnover and short staffing resulted In the errors
leading to this firiding. Agency Officials recognize the need to ensure the presence of
qualified staff for operational continuity. The Organization will implement procedures so
that balance sheet accounts are reconciled and reviewed by management on a mbntNy
baste. The Director of Finance will also develop procedures to produce financial reports on
a periodic basis.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
PCI yKAP.MERRlMACK:^OtJNTJ£S;ftNC:

1 OW INCOME wnMR RNERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
—" ■ 16^1/20^9/30/21

KEY PERSONNEL SALARIES AND ALLOCATION

N»mc Job Title

1

Salary

y» Paid

;  from this

Cootroct

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Jeanne Agri Executive Director S140.639 j 0% $0.00

Elizabeth Hcyward Community Services Director $59,007 1 50% $29,503.50

Valerie Provenzano Program Manager, Fuel Assistance $38,025 50%
1  ...

$19,012.50.



Jeanne Agri

PROFF.SSr.ONAL PROFIUi:

VerSACilc and experienced leader with highly dovoloped coiiununication skills: wrinci), verbfll and prcsentntional. Adept
in coaching and mentoring employees ojid colleagues« evidenced by my selection by the National Office of llcod Start to
serve is a mentor for new Head Sun Directors. Commined to continuous improveincnr of nctivities to cruure they meet .

outcorues approved by the board through strategic planning, creating goal-oriented systems qikI confonnanee with ill
local, stute and fedcrul guidnnce.

/

WORKEXPERfENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimock Counties, Concord. KH ,
Executive Director 20l8-pr6sinl

•  Assures the orgftnixation has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting

and

tWi-'ajV mTflo JtQn ancjid, Rpjl
Provide leadership in developing programs, orgsniMtibnehstwctijfM.iondJfi^^^
instructions and policies authorized by the Board

•  Establish sound working relotionships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizatjons
and all funding sources important to. the development of the agency and programs.

•  See that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to,dale on the condition ofthe organization and all
important Federal. Stele or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Soulliern New Hnmpshii-e ServlccSt Manchester, NH
Education and Nuiritiori Operations Director 2016 - 2018

•  Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infant and Children, and
-Literacy •Programa.as.well.BSdevclopmenr.of.nn agency. wide.TwOiG.enMStionel.ApPipachtp^vi^

•  Formulate, improve end implemeni departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures

•  Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities

•  Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director

•  Assist In development of strategic plans for operational octiviry; implement and manage operaiional
plans

Director ofChild Development Programs 2001-2016
•  Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center

Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff
•  Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for a!) employees focused on promoting, supporting and

improving early deveiopment of children from the prenatal stage to five yeors of age using rcsaarch -
based practices '

»  ;j?lan:and implement=$,trt'tjtgic inlcry'chlibns w;ilh.Progfem Managers. Speciolisis, Coordinators and
i.V.chier Directors for sites needingvpamihisira'tive support and direction

•  Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating end strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance wich Head Start Performance Standards
Develop internal structures.systcms, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent Involvemcni, nutrition, disabilities , ond
transportation



.  Colloborate with managers and internal fiscal depirimcni in the monitoring wd control of component
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
Perfomtance Standords and other regulatory requirements

.  WoA in pnnnciship wilh iniwnal depnnments to support project goels end meet custotnctexpccutions

.  Ejtebllsh end meintein rcletionships end colleboretionswilh public school districU, systems of h.ghc.cducetion, end other community agencies nnd putncrj j , ■

.  Ensure edcrjuete systems in pl.ee to meintein the highest qu.lity of services to ehildreo sod fern,lies in
compliance with Head Stan Pcrformonce Stondards

.  Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with ettenUon to inclus.ve prsctices end
integreUon of component ereas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

QuallvA.sur<,ncrDirlc,or/Cc-Dlr.clorMChndDc^hpme„,Progrcm, 19W-2001
.  6sl.blish«).nd managed a robust monitoring, rus.lysls snd evaluation system with well-defined resulU,

milestones, and largete inclusive of Coniinuous Quality Improvement practices
.  Monitored for quality and compliaDce at Grantee and Delegate level
.  Worked closely with program Director to review, track end assess mociitonng compliance throughout

•  DTv^opeT^'Tplemenls a written qu.lity sssuranee and performance eveluation plan in conjiincKon with
Governing Board. Policy Council . , •„ r«^ fnr

.  Interpreted and evaluated a variety ofinformBllon to present n m meaningful oral or written form for
varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound dccision-mekmg

.  1997-1999Area of various Child Care sites including direct supervision ofCentcr Directors/Site Managcre

.  Coordinate personal and professional development and training plws for staffand ensure teaching staff
ofOftress towards educational rcquiremcnls as supported by Ibo Performance Standards

.  Documented and administered both positive lind negative feedback and utilize Performance
Improvement Plans when warranted.

w  1995-1997Child Cart CtnUr Director/Sue Monager ^ ,..fT
.  Supervised, mcntored. coach and administered work plans and directives to staff ^ ,
.  Communicated areas of performance promote trammg that reHected individual ^

"■ 'needs ofitaflfmcmbcrs and th*^tcarn as a whole .
.  Ensure program compliance with codes of state and local licensing agencies and grant requirements

New Hampshire Technical College, 1995-1997

'"^^'xaught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood .
Education Program ^ j . , •

.  Planned end organized instruction to maximize documented student learning

.  Emplosxd appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students

.  Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs
EDUCATION

Southcro New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH ^
Master's In Business Administration

Notre Dame CoHegei Manchester, NH 1981
Bachelors of Arts In Elementary Education



Elizabeth J^eyward

Highlights

Fundra^lng and event planning

Relationship building expert
Oeadline-driven

Donor database management

Exceptional multi-tasker

Decisive problem solver

Organized and elTIclent

Motivated team player

Cross-functional team management

Experience
T-^

Community Services Director- August 2017-Present

•• Responsible for the planning, scheduling, implemeniaiion and moniioring of the
KucI and Elcciric Assistance Programs.

•  Responsible for the development of internal operating'procedures for the Fuel and
Electric Assistance Programs compliance with agency end funding requirements

• ~liesponslbirfdr*iitc''devcl6pmcril'of thTopcmting budgct'fdr Fucl'fffrd'EleCtfic'' '
Assistance Programs and area center stniciurc with compliance tviih agency and
funding source requirements.

'• Responsible for the management, training, supervision and evaluation of Fuel and
Elearic Assistance and area center siafT.

^ • Responsible for compiling and maintaining accurate records of programs
stalistics, fmancia! reports, reimbursement requests for agency and various
funding sources.

•  Responsible for developing and implementing omreach plans and ccnirallre client
intake for Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs and other agencies services

. provided through lite area center structure. This will be done in conjunction with
agency progrant and area center directors.

•  Responsible for securing adequate funding for Fuel and Electric Assistance
Programs and local funding of area ccnlcr system by local cities and towns.

•  Responsible for providing public relations and informnlion related to Fuel and



Elccuic Assistance Programs and area center services.
•  Responsbic for coordinating with other program and area center directors on grant

■ development by other agency programs and services to meet local community
needs.

•  Responsible for preparing, writing, and organizing proposals and applications for
Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs and area center programs.

• Responsible for the development and implementation of the information and
referral system used by the area center staff.

i  Responsible for the dcvclopmcni end implemenlotion of a community needs
assessment for the Agency and communities served.

•. Assist in planning, development and Implementation of a data collections
software package with the state and other local CAP agencies-

Director of Mission AdvaDCement-June 2016- July 2017
• Work with the Executive Director and other members of senior leadership to

develop the annual operating budget and identify the financial needs of the
organization that must be met by fundraising;

.  Create and manage the annual development plan that encompasses individual and
institutional givihg'(foundatiof\s, corporation and partners),

•  Track key metrics, where success is measured by growth in contributor numbers,
donor retention and dollars raised;

• Manage the development budget and assist the Executive Director in developing
individual Board member fundraising plans;

• Manage the portfolio of donor prospects, including identifying, researching,
qualifying, cullivating.and soliciting gif)s.from individuals..corporatiODS,.and
foundations.

-  Support the Executive Director in major gift cultivation and solicitation efforts
through research, planning, strategy, moves management process.

.  Collaborate with the Executive Director to create individualized stewardship
plans for lop conlributors, including customized donor reports and donor-
recognition. i

.. Manage the annual giving program, including communications, appeals, and
stewardship.

•  Personal ly acknowledge contributors and the impact of their gifts.
• Manage budget [expenses and revenues) and suff on charitable gaming aciiviucs

and placement and sales of vending machines.
.  EfTectivcly position/prepare the Executive Director end Board members for

interactions with major conlributors and prospects.



.  Provide ongoing inspiration, support, resources and (raining in (undraising to the
Board end sta(T.

• Manage the Development and Communications staff for message management
-and effective use of the contributor database, moves management and other tools,
including causc-rclalcd marketing, cuUivaiicn events, etc.

•  Collaborate with other GBS staff in the timely development of wrincn
communications such as annual appeals, direct mail and advertising.

•  Travel to meet with top contributors in addition to fvndreising events and board
meetings.

Director of Community Reladons-Marcb 2015-June 2016

Treasure of the Private Provider NctwofV in Concord KH.

•• Assist in all fundraising events for Great Bay. Including plan, and .execution.
•  Provide active representation at local and state level events and meetings.
•  Stay current and report back on recent state and federal disability news.
•  Increase community awareness of the organization, client services, and business

opportunities,

• Assist with the newsletter, media presentations, maiketing materials, and
fundraising events.

• Make presentations at High Schools PTA's, and parent groups.
•  Seek out other venues where groups of parents ancnd meetings..
• Meet with area Special Education Directors,

• Develop an active Business Advisory Council.

-Associale-Dircctor.of-Programs.and Services September.20l3*.Marcb.201SRGreal ,
Bay Services

• Oversees Clinical Services. Supervises Case Managers and Nurses. Oversees
Individual

Service Plans, progress notes and other program documentation. Assures
coordination

between case managers and appropriate program staff.
> Conducts interdisciplinary staff meetings with case managers, nurses, residential

managers and community center staff to assure coordination of services, client
concerns,

incidents and trends. Facilitates problem solving and is solution focused.
• Oversees Employment, Day and Residential Services. Reviews consumer
progress,

written reports and assures coordination between all assigned managers.
Supervises all

direct care program managers.

•  is responsible for the hiring and dismissal of all direct care staff.



• Responsible for oricntalion and training of program staff.
• Oversees Residential Managers , , •
. Acts as liaison with furtding and regulatory agencies including Developmental

Disabilities of Maine and New Hampshire.
.  Assists in preparation of annual budget for services Responsible for contract
management . ^

and compliMcc for all services reporting to the position.
•  Oversees consumer admission, iniokc, program management, transfer and
discharge

decisions and procedures.

iV Works in collaboration with and supports the Executive Director on various
projects and

initiatives. . . , .

•  Assists the Executive Director in mancrs relating to organirational operations.
Acts as . .. ^

back up for the Executive Director in his/her absence.
• Coordinates orients and oversees placements of volunteers and interns.

Program Manager for Employment Services October 2011 - August 2013-Grcat Bay
Services

Community Employment Coordinator: Great Bay Services. November 2008- October
2011

Secretary: Uddy Center for the Performing Arts, July 2008- March 2009

Marketing and Communications Intern: Amphcnol TCS. Qcto^ 20^-

MBA in Uadcrship: SNHU. Manchester NH
Graduate Certificate in Uadcrship in a Not for Profit: SNHU. Man^cster. NH

.  Bachelor of Science in Business Administration . Hcsscr College, Manchester.
NH

Associates Degree in Public Relations. Hesscr College. Manchester. NH

Skills and Training

Constant Contact- Monthly newsletter
Donor Perfect- Use diis for our donor database.
Attended ihc'CASE Summer Institute in Educational Fundraising
Microsoft Ofince- Word. Excel, Publisher, and PowerPoint
Board of Directors for Epping Community Church



Valerie L Proveozaoo

Profile

Experienced in office administrallvc and managemcnl skills
Excellent communication skills, assisting others and independent working capabilities

4. Skills

Applications; Microsoft Excel, Office, Word and Outlook, Quickbooks

Syork- Ekfi^riences
Community Action Progmm Bclkoap-Merrimack Counties Tnc, Concord NH
Fuel Assistance Program Manager, Comm«t)ify Scniccs DepI 6/2017 - present
Responsible for the day to day operations and management duties of the Federal Fuel Assistance program
(LtHEAP) In the Community Service Department. Assists in the planning, implemcniaticn, monitoring and
reporting of the Fuel Assistance program, Provides operational management support for the office functions in
Concord and at local centers, including applications, certifications, interaction with participants and vendor
inquiries, preparalion.and maintenance of record keeping systems and collection of data statistics for all
programs for funding requests and reports. Assists in the certification and processing of incoming FAP/EAP
applications to include vendor and client notification. Answers FAP/EAP office telephone calls to resolve
questions and inquiries. Provides FAP program infcrmalicn, modifications and procedure manual information
directed from OSI to Intake, Ceriifierfs) and program A/P clerk. Supervises Certificr(s). Maintains full
understanding and knowledge of and oversees the FAP invoice payment process, issuance, maintenance and
foMow.up of FAP program Vendor contracts and fiscal procedures. Maintains knowledge of federal, stale end
agency policies and procedures for effective implementation of the Fuel Assistance Program goals and
objectives.
Program Assistant, Community Services Dcpt 2/2009-6/2017
Assist Director with the administration and management duties of the Federal Fuel Assistance Program
(LtHEAP) and State Electrical Assistance programs. Assist in the oversight of the intake and outreach functions
of the agency's Area Center system. Provides clerical support for office functions in the Concord office and at

~lh"e"lokSrc^nter^irVcluding"applications.""ccrtificatlons;inieraction with parlicipants and vendor inquiries;
preparation and maintenance of record keeping systems and collection of data statistics for all programs for
funding requests and reports. Coordinates the paperwork flow of information to participants, Area Center staff
and other programs within the agency. Assists in training and coaching of Intake staff and Area Center
Managers.

D&S DesigBS, LLC, GilmontoD IW, IVH
Bookkeeper/Office Manager 2003 -11 /2008
Responsible for managing the day to day office operations for this custom fine cabinetry and furniture
company. Interact with clients and contractors to schedule work. Track progress and job costs of multiple
projects. Utilize Quickbooks for billing, accounts payable Sl receivable, payroll, banking, time.tracking, job &
supply ordering, budgeting, forecasting and marketing. Compose bid letters and proposals. Prepare and
maintain employee records and all human resource functions. Maintained sales literature and company website.
As needed, supervised Shop personnel and assisted with detail and finish work of cabinetry.

Palmer Gas St Oil Company, Atkiosoo, NH
Sales Support Staff 2001 -2003
Assisted Inside and outside Sales personnel. Scheduled sales personnel appointments and installation of
products and technicians. Client Communications. Assisted with general office duties and support.



Eastern Propane & Oil Company, Louden. NH

WanflEcd 6 office personnel. Responsible for hiring, training and motivation. Calculate and submit weekly
Myroll for 30+ employees. Submit accounts payable for department. General office duties: inputting and
maintaining all ncw/c)cisiing cuilomcr accounts, monthly budget and prc-buy accounts and customa
correspondence. logfi-iono
Service Department Managers Assistaol ivyo iwv
Assisted in supervising 9 LP/Oil technicians. Scheduled appointments and installations. Answer & resolve
incoming Service Dcpt telephone calls.

di Education.

Hcsscr'cbilegc, Manchester, NH
Associate Degree in Business Science, 1987
Continuing Education, Concord'and Derry School Districts
Certificates of Completion - Microsoft Windows 98 and Excel

Activities

Membership in Greater Concord Area Chamber of Commerce. 2007 - 2008

References - available upon request



Project Name: Bristol Broadband Now
Grantee Name: Town of Bristol, New Hampshire

Total CARES Act Grant Amount: $1,592,000

Total Properties Served: 312

Locatlon(s): Bristol. NH

Project Name: 144-22-A

Grantee Name: Granite State Telephone. Inc. d/b/a Granite State Communications

Total CARES Act Funds: $355,619

Total Properties Served: 257

Location(s): Washington, NH

Project Name: 148-20-W
Grantee Name: Granite State Telephone. Inc. d/b/a Granite State Communications

Total CARES Act Funds: $292,899

Total Properties Served: 122

Location(s): Deering. NH

Project Name: 147-20-A
Grantee Name: Granite State Telephone. Inc. d/b/a Granite State Communications

Total CARES Act Funds: $252,205

Total Properties Served; 178

Location(s): Washington/Stoddard, NH

Project Name: 159-19-A
Grantee Name: Granite State Telephone. Inc. d/b/a Granite State Communications

Total CARES Act Funds: $162,369

Total Properties Served: 93

Location(s): Washington. NH



Project Name: 146-20-H '
Grantee Name: Granite Stale Telephone, Inc. d/b/a Granite State Communications

Total CARES Act Funds: $126,223

Total Properties Served: 60

Location(s): Hillsborough, NH

GRANTEE SUMMARY

Grantee Name: Granite Stke Telephone Inc.

Total CARES Act Grant ̂ ount: $1,189,315
Total Properties Served: 710

Locatlon[s): Deering. Hills >orough, Stoddard, Washington, NH

Project Name: Errol, NH Speed Upgrade
Grantee Name: Consolidated Communications Enterprise Services, Inc.

Total CARES Act Funds: ̂135.000
Total Properties Served: 79

Location(s): Errol, NH

Project Name: Springfield,
Grantee Name: Consolida

NH FTTP

ed Communications Enterprise Services, Inc.

Total CARES Act Funds: ̂507,000
Total Properties Served; 788

Location(s): Springfield, N

Project Name: Danbury, NH FTTP
Grantee Name; Consolidated Communications Enterprise Services, Inc.

Total CARES Act Funds: $1,722,563

Total Properties Served: 708
I

l_ocation(s): Danbury. NH |



Project Name: Mason. NH FTTP
Grantee Name: Consolidated Communications Enterprise Sen/ices. Inc.

Total CARES Act Funds: $1,353,500

Total Properties Served: 592

Location(s): Mason, NH

GRANTEE SUMMARY

Grantee Name: Consolidated Communications Enterprise Services. Inc.

Total CARES Act Funds; $3,718,063

Total Properties Served: 2,167

Location(s): Danbury. Errol, Mason Springfield, NH

Project Name: Comcast Broadband Expansion Project
Grantee Name: Comcast Cable Communications, LLC

Total CARES Act Funds: $146,372

Total Properties Served: 73

Location(s): Canaan. Hinsdale. Loudon, NH

Project Name: STODDARD-RT123
Grantee Name: FIbercast Corporation

Total CARES Act Funds: $336,637.50

Total Properties Served: 309

Location(s): Stoddard. NH

Project Name: NELS0N-ST0DDARD-RT9
Grantee Nanhe: Fibercast Corporation

Total CARES Act Funds: $181,136.10

Total Properties Served: 144



Location(s): Nelson, Stoddard, NH

GRANTEE SUMMARY j
I

Grantee Name: Fibercast Corporation
(

Total CARES Act Funds: $517,773.60
• r

Total Properties Served: 453

Location(s): Nelson, Stoddard, NH

Project Name; NHEC Broadband Connect - Town of Colebrook
Grantee Name: New Hampshire Electric Cooperative, Inc. (NHEC)

i

Total CARES Act Funds: p3,406,628
Total Properties Served; 487

Location(s): Colebrook, Stewartstown. Clarksville, NH

i
.  I

Project Name: NHEC Broadband Connect - Town of Lempster
Grantee Name: New Hampshire Electric Cooperative. Inc. (NHEC)

Total CARES Act Funds: p.337.087
Total Properties Served; 358

Location(s): Lempster, NH

I

GRANTEE SUMf^ARY 1

Grantee Name: New Hampshire Electric Cooperative. Inc. (NHEC)
Total CARES Act Funds: $6,743,715

I

Total Properties Served: 845

Location(s): Colebrook. Clarksville. Lempster. Strewartstown, NH
I



CARES ACT FUNDS: $13,907,238.60

PROPERTIES SERVED: 4,560

LOCATIONS: Bristol, Canaan, Clarksvllle, Colebrook, Danbury, Deering, Errol,
HInsdaie, Hjlisbcrough, Lempster, Louden, Mason, Nelson, Springfield,
Stewartstown, Stoddard, Washington



Thank you Mr. Chairman for the opportunity to testify this morning, I will be brief. For the
record, my name is Jared Chicoine and I'm the Olrertor of the Governor's Office of Strategic
Initiatives. By way of background, OS! administered the Connecting NH Emergency Broadband
Expansion Program last year which was created to address the increased need for internet
connectivity due to the Covidl9 Pandemic. This program was authorized by Governor Chris
Sununu and was funded through the CARES Act Coronavirus Relief Fund.

The Program spent 13.9 million dollars and connected 4,500 previously unserved properties in
19 communities.
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SENATE BILL 85-FN

AN ACT establishing a broadband matching grant initiative and fund.

SPONSORS: Sen. Bradley, Dist 3; Sen. Cavanaugh, Dist 16; Sen. Avard, Diet 12; Sen. Prentiss.
Diet 5; Sen. Sherman, Dist 24; Sen. Ward. Dist 8; Sen. Watters, Dist 4; Sen.
Daniels, Dist 11; Sen. Gannon, Dist 23; Sen. Giuda, Dist 2; Sen. Rcsenwald, Dist
13; Sen. D'Allesandro. Dist 20; Sen. Hennessey. Dist 1; Sen. Carson, Dist 14; Rep.
Uroberger. Carr. 2; Rep. Marsh, Carr. 8; Rep. Cashing, Rock. 21

COMMITTEE:. Election Law and Municipal Affairs

ANALYSIS

This bill establishes the broadband matching grant initiative and fund in the office of strategic
initiatives.

Explanation: Matter added to current law oppcors in bold italics.
Matter removed firom current low appears [w-broeketa'und stwielithrough.)
Matter which is either (a) all new or (b) repealed and rccnactcd appears in regular type.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

In the Year of Our Lord Two Thousand Twenty One

AN ACT establishing a broadband motchine grant initiative and fund.

Be it £fioc/cd by (ic ̂ nate and House of Representatives in. General Court convened:
1  Findings and Puriose. The COVlD-19 pandemic has shown the absolute necessity for

broadband Internet access for oil New Hampshire residents for working, education, medicine, social

interaction, and other purposes. The pandemic has also shown gaps in adequate coverage primarily

in rural areas of New Hampshire. Increasingly residents are going to require better access to

broadband at a sufCcient

federal funds shall be ma

broadband access. . The g

upload and download speed. A matching grant that utilizes state and
ched by political subdivision and private funds is essential to improved

neral court recognizes that a public-private partnership is essential to

developing broadband access required in New Hampshire.

2 New Subdivision; Broadband Matching Grant Initiative. Amend RSA 4-c by inserting after

section 37 the following new subdivision:

Broadband Matching Grant Initiative

4.C:38 Broadband Matching Grant Initiative Established.

I.' There is hereby Istablished within the office of strategic initiatives a broadband matching
grant initiative, the purplse of which shall be to provide matching grants to eligible political
subdivisions and comrauni ations districts in order to improve broadband access across the state.

II. Eligible project i shall provide high speed Internet access that meets or exceeds 25 Mbps
download, and 3 Mbps upbad (25/3 Mbps) to areas completely unservcd by providers, or in areas

served by providers at a lower speed.

III. Any political

eligible for a grant .of up

construction at the time o

eligible.

4-C:39 Program Guide

I. Eligible costs foi

lubdivision or communications district formed under RSA 53-G shall be

to 50 percent of the total eligible costs of a project. Projects under
application shall be ineligible. ProjecU in the planning stages shall be

ines; Rulemaking.

the program shall include, but not limited to:

(a) Purchase or lease of rights of way. including pole access.

(b) Construction of mainline or backbone lines.

(c) Construction of service connections to individual homes or businesses.

(d) Upgrades [to existing infrastructure that currently provides service that does not
meet the minimum of 25 Mpps download and 3 Mbps upload (25/3 Mbps) speeds.

(e) All other costs directly attributable to the construction project. In cases where a cost
is shared with another ong ling project, shared costs shall be prorated.
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1  II. Planning costs shall be ineligible for reimbursement. For cases of demonstrated financial

2  hardship, applicants may apply for a waiver to this requirement, subject to the approval by the office

3  of strategic initiatives.

4  III. The political subdivision or communications district shall provide up to 50 percent of the

5  total cost of the project. Sources of the match may include revenue bonds issued by the political

6  subdivision or bonds issued by the communication district. Political subdivisions may negotiate with

7  broadband providers for private contribution. Any private contribution shall be credited towards the

6  political subdivision or communications district share of the project.

9  IV. The office of strategic initiatives shall adopt rules under RSA 541-A and RSA 4-C:5,

10 relative to grant application and distribution procedures.

11 4-C:40 Broadband Matching Grant Fund.

12 I. There is hereby established the broadband matching grant fund. The fund shall be keep

13 separate and distinct from all other funds and shall be continually appropriated to the director of the

14 office of strategic initiatives for the purposes of this subdivision. In addition to state appropriations,

15 the office of strategic initiatives may accept gifts, grants, and donations for deposit into Che fund.

IC II. Any federal funds received by the state for the purposes of expanding or improving

17 Internet access that are not otherwise committed to other programs or required by the federal

18 legislation authorizing the funds shall be deposited into Che broadband matching grant fund.

19 3 New Subparagraph; Dedicated Funds; Broadband Matching Grant Fund. Amend RSA 6:12,

20 1(b) by inserting after subparagraph (364) the following new subparagraph:

21 (365) Moneys deposited in the broadband matching grant fund under RSA 4-C:40.

22 4 Effective Date. This act shall take effect July 1, 2021.
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SB 85-FN- FISCAL NOTE

AS INTRODUCED

AN ACT establishing a broadband matching grant initiative and fund.

FISCAL IMPACT: [XlJ State ( ) County I 1 Local [  ] None

Estimated Increase / (Decrease)

STATE: FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Appropriation $0 SO $0 $0

Revenue $0 so SO $0

Expenditures $0
Indeterminable

Increase

Indeterminable

Increase

Indeterminable

Increase

.Funding.'Source.: ■■
.•iB'roat

General- • (; "JiEducation. (
band'Matching Grant Furidi,:i . !•

•  •) Highway. I^X j-Olher-. ; •

COUNTY;

Revenue $0
indeterminable

Increase

Indeterminable

Increase

Indeterminable

Increase

Expenditures SO
Indeterminable

Increase

Indeterminable

Increase

Indeterminable

Increase

LOCAL;

Revenue SO
Indeterminable

Increase

Indeterminable

Increase

Indeterminable

Increase

Expenditures $0
Indeterminable

Increase

Indeterminable -

Increase

Indeterminable

Increase

METHODOLOGY:

This biU establishes

Initiatives (OSI) and a

provide matching gran

to improve broadband

; broadband matching grant initiative within the Office of Strategic

nonlapsing continually appropriated Broadband Matching Grant Fund to

;8 to ebgible political subdivisions and communications districts in order
access across the state. OSI anticipates partnering with other state

agencies to fulfill th : objectives of the bill. The program shall be funded with state
appropriations, gifts giants and donations and any federal funds received by the state for the
purposes of expanding or improving Internet access that are not othci-wise committed to other

programs or required by the federal legislation to be used for other purposes. There is no
appropriation in this bill.

The Office is unable to stimate a potential administrative coat as the number of applications arc

unknown, and therefore the fiscal impact of this new program is indeterminable.



Any political subdivision or communications district formed under RSA 53-G shall be eligible for

a grant of up to 50 percent of the total eligible costs of a project. The Gscal impact would be

based on the number and scale of eligible projects and based on rules for eligibility determined

by the Office of Strategic Initiatives.

AGENCIES CONTACTED:

Office of Strategic Initiatives


